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I t’s  the  st ra ight  l i ne  connect ing  va lue  to  shareowner

F i n a n c i a l  H i g h l i g h t s

FISCAL YEAR 2001 2000 1999 1998 1997

($ in thousands, except per share data)

Reported Results
Net Sales $25,186,933 $30,715,149 $28,068,642 $22,034,038 $16,581,539
Gross Profit 1,329,899 1,556,298 1,336,163 1,391,168 1,085,689
Income from Operations 92,930 353,437 200,004 486,605 376,579
Net Income 6,737 226,173 183,419 245,175 193,640
Diluted Earnings Per Share 0.04 1.52 1.24 1.64 1.32

Total Assets $5,302,007 $6,608,982 $8,271,927 $6,733,404 $4,932, 1 5 1
Total Debt 458,107 545,618 1 ,348,135 1,720,456 1 , 1 4 1 , 1 3 1
Total Debt, including off-balance

sheet financing (1) 680,360 1,455,806 1 ,610,723 1,820,456 1,301, 1 3 1
Total Stockholders’ Equity 1,867,298 1,874,392 1,966,845 1,399,257 1,038,206

Pro Forma Results
Income from Operations (2) $157,234 $353,437 $220,309 $486,605 $376,579
Net Income (3) 48,86 1 154,426 67,210 245,1 75 193,640
Diluted Earnings Per Share (3) 0.32 1.04 0.45 1.64 1.32

It was a tough year for the technology industry. At Ingram Micro,

the slow economic environment did not interfere with our focus

on enhancing value for our customers, business partners and

shareowners. We set goals to improve performance and pursue

profitable growth, and we stayed on course to achieve these

goals. As a result, the company is now better positioned than

ever for long-term success.

• Increased Gross Margins to 5.28 Percent

• Strengthened Balance Sheet

• Reduced Selling, General and Administrative (SG&A) Expenses 

by more than $36 Million in Q4 2001 Compared with Q4 2000

• Reduced Inventory 44 Percent — $1.3 Billion — with Higher Turns

• Lowest Debt-to-Capitalization Ratio in the IT Distribution Industry
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(1) Includes off-balance sheet debt of $222,253, $910,188, $262,588, $100,000, and $160,000, as of fiscal year end 2001, 2000, 1999, 1998, and 1997, respectively, which 
amounts represent all of the undivided interests in transferred accounts receivables, sold to and held by third parties as of the respective balance sheet dates.

(2) Excludes reorganization costs and special items of $64,304 and $20,305 in 2001 and 1999, respectively.
(3) Excludes net after-tax charges (gains) from reorganization costs and special items, sales of available-for-sale securities, and extraordinary items of $42,124, ($71,747) 

and ($116,209) in 2001, 2000, and 1999, respectively.



I t’s  st rateg ica l ly  connect ing  v is ion  to  per fo rmance

The Greeks were first to theorize that the earth is round. Columbus

confirmed the theory in 1492 upon reaching America. And Magellan

proved it once and for all when his three-year voyage around the

world was completed in 1522. It took vision — vision combined with

courage — to embark upon a new direction that would rewrite the

rules and forever change the way we look at the world.  

Ingram Micro has this kind of vision. In our own quest to determine what lies beyond the horizon, we discovered that our

world, the world of IT distribution, is not round. It is, in fact, a series of straight lines. Lines that connect us — to our 

customers, vendors and shareowners. The line connecting vision to performance. As a result, we are rewriting the rules and

changing the way we look at our world.

I am pleased to report to you that, despite one of the worst demand environments to ever hit the IT industry, Ingram Micro

plotted a straight course and emerged a stronger company. We did what we needed to do. We reduced costs and held steady

on improved gross margins while we fortified our customer relationships. Through it all, our best-in-class balance sheet 

continues to be strengthened, with a total debt-to-capitalization ratio that is the lowest in the IT distribution industry.

BALANCING THE BOTTOM LINE

The unprecedented business environment that challenged the IT industry at the end of

2000 continued to affect market conditions in 2001. Our net sales were $25.2 billion for

the year, down 18 percent. We delivered net income for the full year of $48.9 million or

$0.32 per diluted share, before reorganization costs, special items and losses for the

repurchase of debentures totaling $42.1 million. This compares to net income of $154.4

D E A R S H A R E O W N E R S :

Kent B. Foster
Chairman and CEO

million or $1.04 per diluted share in 2000, which excludes gains from the

sales of securities and repurchase of debentures totaling $71.7 million.

Again, we assumed leadership for the IT distribution industry to achieve long-term profitability. Building on last year’s success

to increase gross margins, we focused our efforts on reducing costs while balancing share growth with strong gross margins.

Step by step, we made visible improvements to our cost structure, reducing expenses by more than $36 million compared with

the fourth quarter of 2000. Beyond their size and scope, the reductions we made were thoughtful, targeted, and supported

by a process designed to maximize efficiencies with minimal business disruption. The steps we have taken were done with

our customers and vendors in mind, designed to improve levels of service and support.

Let me provide a few examples to illustrate my point.

We reorganized the U.S. sales and product management divisions, consolidated distribution and return centers, and refocused

the IT functions to support a more service-oriented business model. Nearly 6,500 customers were moved to the dedicated

sales teams we created, without increasing personnel or sacrificing customer relationships. The response from customers has

been overwhelmingly positive. We have consistently heard praise from our customers for the higher service levels. It’s clear

that we reached a new benchmark in our high quality customer service.

We also increased efficiencies in our distribution centers through state-of-the-art supply chain automation. This year, we

introduced next-generation technology in our U.S. distribution centers. Our new system, called IM-First, is wireless, paperless

and virtually eliminates the manual collection of data. Through automation we can increase utilization, allowing us to consolidate

facilities without reducing service levels. In fact, we rationalized our distribution networks in the United States, Europe and

Latin America, as we reduced the number of centers or replaced outdated centers with newer, more efficient facilities.

We are changing the rules of the IT distribution business, proving that operational efficiencies and high quality service can

go hand in hand.

DEMONSTRATING VALUE

We did not shy away from the slow economic environment — instead, we had the courage and discipline to pursue opportunities

for profitable growth. Our pricing strategy was surgical and smart, and it was complemented by increases in fee-based revenues
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WORKING CAPITAL Q4’99 Q4’01 IMPROVEMENT %

INVENTORY $3,472 $1,624 $1,848 53%

INVENTORY TURNS 9 14 5  

DSO (1) 36 37 (1)

DPO 52 41 (11)

TOTAL DEBT, INCLUDING $1,611 $680 $931 58%
OFF-BALANCE SHEET DEBT (1)

(1) Includes off-balance sheet debt associated with our accounts 
receivable financing programs

DSO: Accounts Receivable Days of Sales Outstanding
DPO: Days of Accounts Payable Outstanding

$ MILLIONS



compared to a year ago. At the same time, we achieved good rebates and discounts, as our customers and vendors 

recognized the value we provide. And we aggressively managed excess and obsolete inventory. Our achievements in inventory

management, in fact, have been particularly impressive. We reduced inventory by approximately $1.3 billion from the 

previous year-end.

We believe there is still room for gross margin expansion over the long term as we continue to demonstrate our value to our 

customers and vendors, increase fee-based revenues, and enhance the mix of customers, products and geography.

CONNECTING TO THE FUTURE

One of the positive results of a slow economic environment is that it unleashes creativity, especially in a company like ours

with a history of innovation. Connecting the right solutions and the right products to the right customers is an important 

philosophy behind our strategic initiatives.

Through IM-Logistics, we continued to expand opportunities that allow us to leverage our expertise and infrastructure and

provide fee-based fulfillment services for companies like Amazon.com and Intuit. During the launch of Windows XP, the 

IM-Logistics Division moved more than 800,000 units, most of it shipped directly from the manufacturer without touching a

warehouse, to approximately 7,500 retail locations. Innovative steps like these do more than help us gain market share, they

affirm our leadership position in the industry.

Ingram Micro also has the resources that enable value-added resellers (VAR) to sell new technologies, adopt new business

models and provide effective go-to-market programs for vendors. We celebrated the grand opening of our Solution Center, a

development testing and training facility for enterprise solutions. We announced plans to offer wireless networking, Internet

infrastructure, storage area network solutions, and bundled services. And, we added a new VAR community, SMB Alliance, to

VentureTech Network and Partnership America, furthering our commitment to investing in the resources necessary to develop

tools, training and business opportunities that will help VARs do business more effectively.

SETTING THE COURSE

In setting our plans for the future, the strategies we developed this year affected every level of our organization. We

strengthened our executive team with the addition of Thomas A. Madden, executive vice president and chief financial officer.

Tom, a veteran of finance and strategy, joined Ingram Micro in July 2001, replacing Michael J. Grainger, who was promoted to

president and chief operating officer earlier in the year. 

We further leveraged our existing management team when we united our U.S. and Canada regions to become Ingram Micro

North America. Kevin M. Murai was named president of the new North America region as Asger Falstrup became president,

Ingram Micro Latin America. By sharing best practices across country borders and capturing economies of scale, we have the

inside track toward maximizing our success as a service organization.

Finally, we said goodbye to board members Don H. Davis, Jr. and Philip M. Pfeffer, and welcomed new members Dale R. Laurance and

Michael T. Smith. They are all visionaries whose experience and steadfast commitment to our company help us remain on course.

THE JOURNEY AHEAD

Oliver Wendell Holmes once noted that the great thing in this world is not so much where we are, but in what direction we

are moving. Our work is far from over. We must continue to manage expenses tightly and identify additional areas of our business

where we can streamline costs by improving processes, sharing resources and automating more of our operations.

As always, vision will play a critical role in our success and leadership. And so will the dedication of our incredibly talented

and experienced people. I believe that technology will once again emerge as the most dynamic, exciting and fastest growing

segment of our economy. While no one can be sure of exactly when that will occur, when it does, we are better positioned

than ever to capitalize on the opportunities.

Kent B. Foster

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
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I t’s  demonstrab ly  connect ing  exper t i se  and  execut ion

OUR DISTRIBUTION CENTER MANAGEMENT SYSTEM DELIVERED UNDER EXTRAORDINARY CIRCUMSTANCES. 

For the first time in U.S. aviation history, all air carrier services were suspended immediately after the September 11 terrorist

attacks. Because of the geographic diversity and strategic location of Ingram Micro's distribution centers, and our existing

transportation system infrastructure, we were able to implement contingency plans that allowed us to get products to customers

on time via ground transport. “Our distribution network design, in conjunction with our robust transportation management

systems and inventory position, allowed us to deliver most shipments in the continental United States within 24 to 48 hours,“

says Jeff Johnson, vice president, logistics and transportation. “Among these were emergency shipments of critically needed

equipment to hospitals, relief organizations and companies that were directly affected by the attacks in New York City and

Washington, D.C.  It was gratifying to be able to support our customers and our country in this time of crisis.”

What happens when a team of highly experienced, insightful

and dedicated professionals  put  their  resources to work 

to  so lve  prob lems  and  create  innovat ive  so lut ions  for  

customers? It becomes the largest global wholesale provider

of technology products and supply chain management services

— and continues to sustain that leadership position.

DC Management and Transportation Team: Under the direction of Jeff Johnson (center), Jonathan Chihorek (left) and Paul Warden (right), 
our logistics infrastructure kept critical shipments going during one of the darkest moments in our country’s history.
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SALES TEAM RESTRUCTURING RESULTS IN GREATER EFFICIENCIES — AND CUSTOMER SATISFACTION. 

After a comprehensive analysis of our customers’ needs, our U.S. sales division restructured its organization in 2001, 

moving 6,500 customers to dedicated sales teams that are able to provide support without an increase in personnel. At the

same time, we streamlined operations and improved our business processes, reducing administrative tasks and giving sales 

representatives more time to cultivate customer relationships. As a result of these efforts, revenue per employee has

increased significantly. According to Pat Collins, senior vice president sales, Ingram Micro North America, “Even though the

number of customers assigned to each account representative has increased, U.S. sales efficiency has improved. Most important,

recent evaluations among various accounts show that customer feedback has never been more positive.”

WIRELESS TECHNOLOGY ALLOWS REAL-TIME DATA COLLECTION AND IMPROVES EFFICIENCIES. 

IM-First, a next-generation wireless and paperless distribution management system, has made manual data collection 

obsolete in our distribution centers. Designed by Ingram Micro, IM-First connects the company’s entire U.S. distribution 

network to expedite fulfillment and reverse-logistics services. Reports are now generated online in real time, providing

instant access to information. They help us make informed operational decisions quickly and have the right products in the

right place. “With the implementation of IM-First, not only has the accuracy of processing been improved but productivity at

our facilities has increased as much as 20 to 30 percent,” explains Frank Ro, director of distribution systems. “We now truly

have the ability to process orders 24/7.”

U.S. Sales: Teamwork on the part of U.S. sales took customer service to new levels in 2001. Representing the team with Pat 
Collins (center) are (left to right) Michelle Herrera, Cindy McNew, Jim Simonelli, Cayle Curtis, Audra Lynch and Todd Rickman.

IM-First Team: IM-First brought real-time connectivity to Ingram Micro's distribution centers this year. Shown are representatives
of the IM-First team including (left to right) Chris Insley, Justin Cirillo, Matt Smentek, Carmella Cassetta, Frank Ro, and Mike Brooks.

1 110



I t‘s  the  instantaneous  connect ion  of  manufacturers  to  marketp laces

Ingram Micro is a global market leader with a vast network of resources

and infrastructure unrivaled in the industry. This means that wherever

technology is helping people accomplish more, we serve as the vital

connection between manufacturer and customer, between problem

and solution, between idea and reality. 

A STRATEGICALLY PIVOTAL YEAR IN EUROPE.

A year after the formation of Ingram Micro Networking Services, our specialized pan-European enterprise initiative for networking

and communication products, we were selected by Cisco as one of seven distributors that will serve the entire continent. The 

Networking Services Division provides customers with services like product consulting, sales support and training, project man-

agement, and technical and customer support, in addition to product. ”Vendors like Cisco are realizing the value of a pan-European

approach through multi-market distributors like Ingram Micro over local distribution,” says Greg Spierkel, president, Ingram Micro

Europe. “Through strategic acquisition we have added critical mass to our networking division, expanding our capabilities and 

furthering our goal of becoming the strongest networking distributor in Europe, particularly in the small-to-midsized business market.”

MEXICO TAKES A MAJOR STEP TO IMPROVE EFFICIENCIES. 

Ingram Micro is constantly on the lookout for opportunities to improve efficiencies in its global operations. This year, our Latin

America operations identified such an opportunity with their state-of-the-art distribution center in Mexico City. The new facility,

a consolidation of four previous centers, offers benefits that go beyond the traditional distribution channel. Ingram Micro business

partners in Mexico will be able to use the new facilities to carry out their fulfillment, storage, distribution, configuration and

assembly operations. “The successful consolidation of this distribution center demonstrates our commitment to providing our

customers with quality service and solutions,” explains Luis Feres, director of operations, Ingram Micro Mexico.

CAPITALIZING ON OPPORTUNITIES IN A GROWING ASIAN MARKET. 

According to International Data Corporation (IDC), China’s entry into the World Trade Organization will help ensure that its

25 percent annual IT spending growth continues for years. By 2010, IDC expects China to be the third largest IT market in the

world.*  We saw the potential in Asia-Pacific and acquired an interest in Electronic Resources Limited, based in Singapore, in

1997. Since then, we have concentrated on building an infrastructure that supports our long-term strategy for leadership in

this region, particularly in China and India. “Asia-Pacific represents significant opportunities with the right processes and

people in place,” says Hans Koppen, president, Ingram Micro Asia-Pacific. “We are building our business there exponentially,

to keep up with the exploding demand.” *IDC Telebriefing Predictions 2002: “Will the Fog of War Lift?,” January, 2002.
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And  i t’s  the  d i rect  l i ne  connect ing  investment  and  innovat ion

Leadership is always dynamic, never static. And innovation remains

the hallmark of a leader in any industry — especially in the technology

arena. At Ingram Micro, we’re always looking for new ways to improve

the way we do business because we’re passionate about helping

our customers improve the way they do theirs. We believe it’s this

commitment to innovation first and foremost that not only distinguishes

us but drives us as a company.

IM-LOGISTICS‘ INNOVATIVE OPERATION WINS INDUSTRY ACCOLADES — AND SETS THE STANDARD FOR EXCELLENCE.

Ingram Micro is redefining distribution by offering business services and resources that empower customers to reach new 

markets, increase operating efficiency and reduce costs. For example, the IM-Logistics Division in North America provides

manufacturers and large retailers with global and customized logistics and fulfillment services on a fee-for-service basis,

leveraging the assets acquired in the cost-plus distribution model. Using Ingram Micro’s established infrastructure, 

IM-Logistics provides end-to-end order fulfillment, logistics and supply chain solutions, achieving go-to-market excellence

with better than a 99 percent accuracy rate for order deliveries. Given performance like this, it‘s no wonder that IM-Logistics

has been recognized with a number of prestigious industry awards over the past year. These include the 2001 Productivity

Award for warehouse excellence from Modern Materials Handling magazine; ISO 9002 certification; and ranking No. 35 on the

InfoWorld 100, a select list of organizations recognized for technology innovation. “IM-Logistics is honored to be recognized

as a top technology innovator,” says Mike Terrell, senior vice president, general manager, IM-Logistics. “The automation

behind our logistics services gives us a distinct advantage in delivering logistics solutions that drive costs out of our 

customers’ supply chains and allow them to concentrate on their core competencies.”

15

IM-Logistics Team: IM-Logistics delivered logistics solutions and won accolades in 2001. Led by Mike Terrell
(front), the team is represented by (left to right) Bryan Moynahan, Jennifer Gillott and Scott Michaelis.



CANADA BREAKS GROUND WITH VIDEO GAMES.

In May 2001, Ingram Micro Canada launched its new game division, XTREME. Soon after, the division was named the exclusive

Canadian distributor to large retail accounts for Microsoft’s® XBoxTM and played a significant role in what Microsoft has called

one of the most successful launches in video game history.* “We leveraged our existing logistics infrastructure efficiencies

to meet the needs of the industry,” explains Murray Wright, vice president, sales, Ingram Micro Canada. “This new division is

poised to take advantage of one of the fastest growing new categories in the market, and is another example of our 

commitment to the retail channel in Canada.” *Microsoft Q4 2001 Earnings Report, released January 17, 2002

INVESTING IN EMERGING TECHNOLOGY GIVES INGRAM MICRO — AND ITS CUSTOMERS — A COMPETITIVE EDGE. 

Ingram Micro opened its Solution Center in the second quarter of 2001 as a world-class destination for customers looking to

develop, deploy and integrate next-generation e-business applications. The facility houses the first IBM WebSphere Innovation

Center designed exclusively for channel partners, a place where solution providers can gain a deeper understanding of IBM’s

WebSphere platform. Sally Stanton, vice president, general manager, sales, Ingram Micro U.S., explains the thinking behind

this new innovative facility. “Ingram Micro is committed to helping our customers and vendors extend their market reach,

increase profitability and learn new technologies. By offering our channel partners testing, demonstration and training 

environments, we are enabling VARs, customers and vendors to experience, demonstrate and learn about products and services

first-hand. These capabilities can speed up the education period and shorten the sales cycle.” 

All lines point to a stronger company. With a healthy balance
sheet, lower operating costs, innovative procedures, technology
driving new growth opportunities and a strong management
team, Ingram Micro is now better positioned than ever to build
on and enhance its leadership position.
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

In evaluating our business, readers should carefully consider the important factors discussed in “Cautionary Statements for the Purpose of the ’Safe Harbor‘ Provisions
of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995” included in Exhibit 99.01 to our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 29, 2001.

Overv iew
We are the leading distributor of information technology (“IT”) products and services worldwide based on revenues. From 1997 to 2000, our net sales grew
from $16.6 billion to $30.7 billion. The growth during this period reflected the substantial expansion of our existing operations from the integration of
numerous acquisitions worldwide, growth in the IT products and services distribution industry in general, the addition of new product categories and 
suppliers, the addition of new customers, and increased sales to the existing customer base. In 2001, our net sales declined to $25.2 billion. This reduction
was primarily attributable to the general decline in demand for technology products and services throughout the world, which began in the fourth 
quarter of 2000. This sluggish demand for technology products and services is expected to continue, and may worsen, over the near term.

The IT distribution industry in which we operate is characterized by narrow gross profit as a percentage of net sales (“gross margin”) and narrow income
from operations as a percentage of net sales (“operating margin”). From 1997 to 1999, our gross margin declined to 4.8% in 1999 from 6.5% in 1997 with
sequential declines in gross margin each of those years. Initially, the margin decline was caused by intense price competition. Later however, changes in
vendor terms and conditions, including, but not limited to, significant reductions in vendor rebates and incentives, tighter restrictions on our ability to
return inventory to vendors, and reduced time periods qualifying for price protection, exacerbated the decline and constrained gross margin 
improvements. We expect these competitive pricing pressures and restrictive vendor terms and conditions to continue in the foreseeable future. We have
implemented and continue to refine changes to our pricing strategies, inventory management processes, and administration of vendor subsidized 
programs. In addition, we continue to monitor and change on a periodic basis certain of the terms and conditions offered to our customers to reflect those
being imposed by our vendors. We recorded sequential improvements in gross margin in each of the past two years, reaching 5.1% in fiscal year 2000 and
5.3% in 2001 compared to 4.8% realized in 1999, primarily as a result of these initiatives.

We have also continually instituted operational and expense controls that reduced selling, general, and administrative expenses, or SG&A, as a percentage
of net sales to 3.9% in 2000 from 4.2% in 1997, reflecting more effective cost control measures, streamlined processes, and the benefit of greater
economies of scale. However, for fiscal year 2001, SG&A as a percentage of net sales increased to 4.7% due to the significant decline in our net revenues.
As a result, we initiated a broad-based reorganization plan in 2001 to streamline operations and reorganize resources to increase flexibility, improve 
service and generate cost savings and operational efficiencies. This reorganization plan includes restructuring of several functions, consolidation of facilities,
and reductions of headcount. Although we expect these actions to result in future savings, if any future reductions in gross margins were to occur, or if
net revenues continue to decline, we may take additional restructuring actions, which could result in significant additional charges. In addition, there can
be no assurance that we will be able to implement such actions or reduce SG&A commensurately.

In December 1998, we purchased 2,972,400 shares of common stock of SOFTBANK Corp., or Softbank, Japan’s largest distributor of software, peripherals
and networking products, for approximately $50.3 million. During December 1999, we sold approximately 35% of our original investment in Softbank common
stock for approximately $230.1 million, resulting in a pre-tax gain of approximately $201.3 million, net of related expenses. In January 2000, we sold an 
additional approximately 15% of our original holdings in Softbank common stock for approximately $119.2 million resulting in a pre-tax gain of approximately
$11 1.5 million, net of expenses. We used the proceeds from this sale to reduce existing indebtedness. The realized gains, net of expenses, associated with
the sales of Softbank common stock in January 2000 and December 1999 totaled $69.3 million and $125.2 million, respectively, net of deferred taxes of
$42.1 million and $76.1 million, respectively (see Notes 2 and 8 to consolidated financial statements). The Softbank common stock was sold in the public
market by one of our foreign subsidiaries, which is located in a low-tax jurisdiction. At the time of the sale, we concluded that U.S. taxes were not currently
payable on the gains based on our internal assessment and opinions received from our advisors. However, in situations involving uncertainties in the 
interpretation of complex tax regulations by various taxing authorities, we provide for deferred tax liabilities unless we consider it probable that taxes will
not be due. The level of opinions received from our advisors and our internal assessment did not allow us to reach that conclusion on this matter. Although
we review our assessments in these matters on a regular basis, we cannot currently determine when this matter will be finally resolved with the taxing
authorities or if taxes will ultimately be paid.

Our federal income tax returns through fiscal year 1996 have been audited and closed. The U.S. IRS has initiated its audit of our federal income tax returns
for fiscal years 1997 through 1999.

The IT products and services distribution business is working capital intensive. Our business requires significant levels of working capital primarily to
finance accounts receivable. We have relied heavily on debt and accounts receivable financing programs for our working capital needs. In March 2000, we
entered into a revolving five-year accounts receivable securitization program in the U.S., which provides for the issuance of up to $700 million in 
commercial paper. This program adds to our existing accounts receivable facilities, which provide additional financing capacity of approximately $273 
million. As of December 29, 2001, approximately $222.3 million of accounts receivable were sold to and held by third parties under these programs. On
August 16, 2001, we sold $200 million of 9.875% senior subordinated notes due 2008 at an issue price of 99.382%, resulting in cash proceeds of approximately
$195.1 million, net of issuance costs of approximately $3.7 million. On August 16, 2001, we also entered into interest rate swap agreements with two financial
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Se lected  Conso l idated  F inanc ia l  Data

The following table presents our selected consolidated financial data. The information set forth below should be read in 
conjunction with “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations” and the historical 
consolidated financial statements and notes thereto, included elsewhere in this Annual Report to Shareowners.

Our fiscal year is a 52- or 53-week period ending on the Saturday nearest to December 31. References below to 1997, 1998, 1999,
2000 and 2001 represent the fiscal years ended January 3, 1998 (53 weeks), January 2, 1999 (52 weeks), January 1, 2000 (52 weeks),
December 30, 2000 (52 weeks), and December 29, 2001 (52 weeks), respectively.

(Dollars in 000s, except per share data) 2001 2000 1999 1998 1997

Selected Operating Information
Net sales $   25,186,933 $   30,715,14 9 $   28,068,642 $   22,034,038 $   16,581,539 
Gross profit 1,329,899 1,556,298 1,336,163 1,391,1 68 1,085,689
Income from operations (1) 92,930 353,437 200,004 486,605 376,579
Income before income taxes

and extraordinary item (2) 15,935 362,509 290,493 406,860 326,489
Income before extraordinary item (3) 9,347 223,753 1 79,641 245,1 75 193,640
Net income (3) 6,737 226,1 73 183,419 245,1 75 193,640
Basic earnings per share –

income before extraordinary item 0.06 1.54 1.25 1.76 1.43
Diluted earnings per share –

income before extraordinary item 0.06 1.5 1 1. 2 1 1.64 1.32
Basic earnings per share – net income 0.05 1.55 1.28 1 .76 1.43
Diluted earnings per share – net income 0.04 1.52 1.24 1.64 1.32
Basic weighted average

common shares outstanding 147,51 1 ,408 145,213,882 143,404,207 139,263,810 135,764,053
Diluted weighted average

common shares outstanding 150,047,807 148,640,99 1 147,784,712 149,537,870 146,307,532

Selected Balance Sheet Information (4)

Cash and cash equivalents $     273,059 $     150,560 $    128,152 $     96,682 $     92,2 1 2
Total assets 5,302,007 6,608,982 8,271,927 6,733,404 4,932,1 5 1
Total debt (5) 458,1 07 545,6 1 8 1,348,135 1,720,456 1 , 1 4 1 , 1 3 1
Stockholders’ equity 1,867,298 1,874,392 1,966,845 1,399,257 1,038,206

(1) Includes reorganization costs and special items of $41,411 and $22,893, respectively, in 2001 and reorganization costs of $20,305 in 1999.
(2) Includes reorganization costs and special items of $41,411 and $22,893, respectively, in 2001 and reorganization costs of $20,305 in 1999, and gains on

sales of available-for-sale securities of $111,458 and $201,318 in 2000 and 1999, respectively.
(3) Includes reorganization costs and special items, net of tax benefits, of $25,447 and $14,067, respectively, in 2001 and reorganization costs, net of tax

benefits, of $12,789 in 1999, and gains on sales of available-for-sale securities, net of income taxes, of $69,327 and $125,220 in 2000 and 1999, respectively. 
(4) All balance sheet data are given at end of period.
(5) Includes convertible debentures, senior subordinated notes, revolving credit facilities and other long-term debt and current maturities of long-term

debt, but excludes off-balance sheet debt of $222,253, $910,188, $262,588, $100,000 and $160,000, respectively, at the end of fiscal year 2001, 2000,
1999, 1998 and 1997, which amounts represent all of the undivided interests in transferred accounts receivable sold to and held by third parties as of
the respective balance sheet dates (see Note 5 to consolidated financial statements).
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million to $290 million, net of tax benefits ranging from $7 million to $12 million, in the first quarter of 2002. Impairment is based on the valuation of individual
reporting units. The valuation methods used include estimated net present value of projected future cash flows of these reporting units. If actual results are 
substantially lower, or if market discount rates increase, this could adversely affect our valuations and may result in additional future impairment charges.

• Income Taxes - As part of the process of preparing our consolidated financial statements, we have to estimate our income taxes in each of the taxing
jurisdictions in which we operate. This process involves estimating our actual current tax expense together with assessing any temporary differences
resulting from the different treatment of certain items, such as the timing for recognizing revenues and expenses, for tax and accounting purposes.
These differences may result in deferred tax assets and liabilities, which are included in our consolidated balance sheet. We are required to assess the
likelihood that our deferred tax assets, which include net operating loss carryforwards and temporary differences that are expected to be deductible in
future years, will be recoverable from future taxable income or other tax planning strategies. If recovery is not likely, we have to provide a valuation
allowance based on our estimates of future taxable income in the various taxing jurisdictions, and the amount of deferred taxes that are ultimately 
realizable. The provision for current and deferred tax liabilities involves evaluations and judgments of uncertainties in the interpretation of complex tax
regulations by various taxing authorities. In situations involving tax related uncertainties, such as our gains on sales of Softbank common stock (see
Notes 2 and 8 to consolidated  financial statements), we provide for deferred tax liabilities unless we consider it probable that additional taxes will not
be due. Actual results could differ from our estimates.

• Contingencies and Litigation - There are various claims, lawsuits and pending actions against us incident to our operations. If a loss arising from these
actions is probable and can be reasonably estimated, we record the amount of the loss, or the minimum estimated liability when the loss is estimated
using a range within which no point is more probable than another. Based on current available information, we believe that the ultimate resolution of
these actions will not have a material adverse effect on our consolidated financial statements. As additional information becomes available, we assess
any potential liability related to these actions and may need to revise our estimates. Future revisions of our estimates could materially impact the
results of our operations and financial position.

Resu lts  of  Operat ions
The following table sets forth our net sales by geographic region (excluding intercompany sales) and the percentage of total net sales represented thereby,
for each of the fiscal years indicated (in millions).

2001 2000 1999

Net sales by geographic region:
United States $ 13,507 53.6% $ 18,452 60.1 % $ 16,8 14 59.9%
Europe 7,1 57 28.4 7,472 24.3 7,344 26.2
Other international 4,523 18.0 4,79 1 15.6 3 ,9 1 1 1 3.9

Total $ 25,1 87 100.0% $30,7 1 5 100.0% $28,069 100.0%

The following table sets forth certain items from our consolidated statement of income as a percentage of net sales, for each of the 
fiscal years indicated.

2001 2000 1999

Net sales 100.0% 100.0% 100.0%
Cost of sales 94.7 94.9 95.2
Gross profit 5.3 5.1 4.8
Expenses:

SG&A expenses 4.7 3.9 4.0
Reorganization costs 0.2 - 0.0
Special items 0.0 - -

Income from operations 0.4 1.2 0.8
Other expense (income), net 0.3 (0.0) (0.3)
Income before income taxes

and extraordinary item 0.1 1.2 1.1
Provision for income taxes 0.1 0.5 0.4
Income before extraordinary item 0.0 0.7 0.7
Extraordinary item 0.0 0.0 0.0
Net income 0.0% 0.7% 0.7%
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institutions, the effect of which was to swap our fixed rate obligation on our senior subordinated notes for a floating rate obligation based on 90-day LIBOR
plus 4.260%. We also have a revolving credit facility of $500 million, which expires in October 2002, as well as additional facilities of approximately $585
million. As of December 29, 2001, borrowings of $252.8 million were outstanding under the revolving credit and additional facilities. In addition, on June 9,
1998, we sold $1.3 billion aggregate principal amount at maturity of zero coupon convertible senior debentures due 2018. Gross proceeds from this offering
were $460.4 million. In the aggregate, we have repurchased more than 99% of our outstanding convertible debentures over the past three years. Our 
interest expense for a substantial portion of our existing, as well as any future, indebtedness will be subject to fluctuations in interest rates which may
cause fluctuations in our net income.

Cr i t ica l  Account ing  Po l ic ies  and  Est imates
The discussions and analyses of our consolidated financial condition and results of operations were based on our consolidated financial statements, which
have been prepared in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles in the U.S. The preparation of these financial statements requires us to
make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, disclosure of any contingent assets and liabilities at the financial
statement date, and reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the reporting period. On an ongoing basis, we review and evaluate our estimates
and assumptions, including those that relate to accounts receivable; vendor programs; inventories; goodwill, intangible assets and other long-lived assets;
income taxes; and contingencies and litigation. Our estimates were based on our historical experience and a variety of other assumptions that we believe
to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis for making our judgment about the carrying values of assets and liabilities
that are not readily available from other sources. Actual results could differ from these estimates under different assumptions or conditions.

We believe the following critical accounting policies are affected by our judgment, estimates and/or assumptions used in the preparation of our consolidated
financial statements.

• Accounts Receivable - We provide allowances for doubtful accounts on our accounts receivable, including retained interest in securitized receivables,
for estimated losses resulting from the inability of our customers to make required payments. If the financial condition of our customers were to 
deteriorate, which may result in the impairment of their ability to make payments, additional allowances may be required. Our estimates are influenced
by the following considerations: the large number of customers and their dispersion across wide geographic areas, the fact that no single customer
accounts for 10% or more of our net sales, our continuing credit evaluation of our customers’ financial conditions, our credit insurance coverage and
collateral requirements from our customers in certain circumstances.

• Vendor Programs - We receive funds from vendors for price protection, product rebates, marketing and training, and promotion programs which are
generally recorded, net of direct costs, as adjustments to product costs, revenue, or selling, general and administrative expenses according to the nature
of the program. We accrue rebates based on the terms of the program and sales of qualifying products. Some of these programs may extend over one
or more quarterly reporting periods. Actual rebates may vary based on volume or other sales achievement levels, which could result in an increase or
reduction in the estimated amounts previously accrued. In addition, if market conditions were to deteriorate due to an economic downturn, vendors may
change the terms of some or all of these programs. Such change could lower our gross margins on products we sell or revenues earned. We also provide
reserves for receivables on vendor programs for estimated losses resulting from vendors’ inability to pay, or rejections of such claims by vendors.

• Inventories - Our inventory levels are based on our projections of future demand and market conditions. Any sudden decline in demand and/or rapid product
improvements and technological changes can cause us to have excess and/or obsolete inventories. On an ongoing basis, we review for estimated obsolete
or unmarketable inventories and write down our inventories to their estimated net realizable value based upon our forecasts of future demand and market
conditions. If actual market conditions are less favorable than our forecasts, additional inventory reserves may be required. Our estimates are influenced
by the following considerations: sudden decline in demand due to economic downturn, rapid product improvements and technological changes, our ability
to return to vendors a certain percentage of our purchases, and protection from loss in value of inventory under our vendor agreements.

• Goodwill, Intangible Assets and Other Long-Lived Assets - We assess potential impairment of our goodwill, intangible assets and other long-lived
assets when there is evidence that recent events or changes in circumstances have made recovery of an asset’s carrying value unlikely. When the sum
of the expected, undiscounted future net cash flows is less than the carrying value of an asset, an impairment loss will be recognized. The amount of
an impairment loss would be recognized as the excess of the asset’s carrying value over its fair value. Factors we consider important, which may cause
an impairment include: significant changes in the manner of use of the acquired asset, negative industry or economic trends, and significant underperformance
relative to historical or projected future operating results.

In accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 142, “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets” (“FAS 142”) (see Note 2 to consolidated financial
statements), we will no longer amortize goodwill or indefinite-lived intangible assets effective the beginning of fiscal 2002. Instead, these assets will be
reviewed for impairment at least annually. Amortization expense was $21.0 million, $22.0 million, and $22.9 million in 2001, 2000, and 1999, respectively. We
are currently evaluating the effect that the adoption of FAS 142 may have on our consolidated financial position. It is expected that, as a result of the 
implementation of FAS 142, we will record a non-cash charge for the cumulative effect of the change in accounting principle upon adoption ranging from $260
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Income from operations, including reorganization costs and special items, as a percentage of net sales decreased to 0.4% in 2001 compared
to 1.2% in 2000. Income from operations, excluding reorganization costs and special items, decreased as a percentage of net sales to 0.6%
in 2001 from 1.2% in 2000. The decrease in our income from operations, excluding reorganization costs and special items, as a percentage of
net sales, was primarily due to the increase in SG&A expenses as a percentage of net sales, partially offset by our improvement in gross margin,
both of which are discussed above. Our U.S. income from operations, excluding reorganization costs and special items, as a percentage of
net sales decreased to 1.0% in 2001 from 1.5% in 2000. Our European income from operations, excluding reorganization costs and special
items, as a percentage of net sales decreased to 0.4% in 2001 from 0.7% in 2000. Our Other International, income from operations, excluding
reorganization costs and special items, as a percentage of net sales decreased to less than 0.1% in 2001 from 0.5% in 2000.

Other expense (income) consisted primarily of interest, foreign currency exchange losses, losses on sales of receivables under our ongoing
accounts receivable facilities, and other non-operating gains and losses. In 2001, we recorded $77.0 million of net other expense, or 0.3% as
a percentage of net sales, compared to net other income of $9.1 million in 2000, or less than 0.1% as a percentage of net sales. The income
in 2000 primarily resulted from our sale of approximately 15% of our original holdings of Softbank common stock for a pre-tax gain of
approximately $111.5 million, net of related costs. No such transaction occurred in 2001. Excluding the gain realized on the sale of Softbank
common stock, our net other expense in 2001 decreased by $25.4 million or 24.8% compared to 2000. The decrease in net other expense was
attributable to lower interest rates in the first half of the year and lower average borrowings, including off-balance sheet debt resulting from
utilization of our accounts receivable facilities, in 2001 compared to 2000. The decrease in our average borrowings outstanding compared to
the prior period primarily reflects our continued focus on managing working capital as well as the overall lower volume of business.

Our provision for income taxes decreased 95.3% to $6.6 million in 2001 from $138.8 million in 2000, reflecting the 95.6% decrease in our
income before income taxes and extraordinary item. Our effective tax rate was 41.3% in 2001 compared to 38.3% in 2000. The increase in
the 2001 effective tax rate was primarily attributable to the change in the proportion of income earned within the various taxing jurisdictions
and/or tax rates applicable to such taxing jurisdictions.

In 2001, we repurchased more than 99% of our outstanding convertible debentures with a total carrying value of $220.8 million for $225.0 million
in cash, resulting in an extraordinary loss of $2.6 million, net of tax benefits of $1.6 million. In 2000, we repurchased convertible debentures with
carrying values of $235.2 million for $231.3 million in cash, resulting in an extraordinary gain of $2.4 million, net of taxes of $1.5 million.

Year  Ended  December  30,  2000 Compared  to  Year  Ended  January  1 ,  2000
Our consolidated net sales increased 9.4% to $30.7 billion in 2000 from $28.1 billion in 1999. The increase in worldwide net sales was 
primarily attributable to growth in overall demand for technology products, the addition of new customers, increased sales to our existing
customer base, and expansion of our product and service offerings.

Net sales from our U.S. operations increased 9.7% to $18.5 billion in 2000 from $16.8 billion in 1999 primarily due to growth in demand for
technology products and expansion of our product and service offerings. The sales growth in our U.S. operations, however, was moderated,
especially in the second quarter of 2000, compared to historical sales growth primarily due to pricing policy changes we implemented in
the same quarter and our decision to eliminate certain vendor programs. Both decisions were geared towards the improvement of our gross
margin. In addition, towards the end of 2000, the demand for IT products and services softened in the U.S. consistent with the slowing of
the U.S. economy. This softness in U.S. sales continued throughout 2001 and may continue and/or worsen for the next several quarters. Net
sales from our European operations grew approximately 16.1% in local currencies in 2000, but when converted to U.S. dollars, our net sales
only increased by 1.7% to $7.5 billion in 2000 from $7.3 billion in 1999 as a result of weaker European currencies compared to the U.S. dollar.
The sales growth, in local currency, reflects overall growth in our European operations. For our Other International operations, net sales
increased 22.5% to $4.8 billion in 2000 from $3.9 billion in 1999 primarily due to the growth in our Asia-Pacific and Latin American operations.
Our Canadian operations, however, experienced only moderate sales growth in 2000 as compared to the Asia-Pacific and Latin American
operations, primarily due to the overall softness in demand for technology products and services in the Canadian market in the first half
of the year, and lower than anticipated purchases by the Canadian government in the first quarter of 2000. The Canadian government 
purchases are generally strong in the first quarter of each year as this coincides with the Canadian government’s fiscal year-end.
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Year  Ended  December  29,  2001  Compared  to  Year  Ended  December  30,  2000
Our consolidated net sales decreased 18.0% to $25.2 billion in 2001 from $30.7 billion in 2000. The decrease in worldwide net sales was
primarily attributable to the decline in demand for technology products and services throughout the world. This decline in demand 
initially surfaced in the U.S. in the fourth quarter of 2000, but spread to all of our regions of operations during 2001. This sluggish demand
for technology products and services is expected to continue, and may worsen, over the near term.

Net sales from our U.S. operations decreased 26.8% to $13.5 billion in 2001 from $18.5 billion in 2000 primarily due to the continued
sluggish demand for IT products and services, consistent with the continued softening of the U.S. economy. Net sales from our European
operations were flat in local currencies in 2001, reflecting the soft demand for technology products and services in most countries in
Europe, but when converted to U.S. dollars, our net sales decreased 4.2% to $7.2 billion in 2001 from $7.5 billion in 2000 as a result of
weaker European currencies as compared to the U.S. dollar. For our geographic regions outside the U.S. and Europe, our Other
International operations, net sales decreased 5.6% to $4.5 billion in 2001 from $4.8 billion in 2000, primarily due to the overall softness
in demand for technology products and services in our Canadian and Asia-Pacific operations. Our Latin American operations, however,
experienced moderate sales growth in 2001 compared to 2000 primarily due to the continued growth of our customer base in the region.

Gross margin increased to 5.3% in 2001 from 5.1% in 2000. The improvement in our gross margin was primarily due to pricing policy
changes we initiated during 2000 to more appropriately reflect the value and related costs of services we provide to our customers, 
complemented by improvements in vendor rebates, discounts and fee-based revenues. We have implemented and continue to refine
changes to our pricing strategies, inventory management processes, and administration of vendor subsidized programs. In addition, we
continue to change certain of the terms and conditions offered to our customers to reflect those being imposed by our vendors. As we 
evaluate our pricing policy changes made to date, and make future pricing policy changes, if any, we may experience moderated or negative
sales growth in the near term. The softness in the U.S. and other international economies, as well as increased competition, partially resulting
from the economic slowdown, may hinder our ability to maintain and/or improve gross margins from the levels realized in 2001.

Total SG&A expenses decreased 2.5% or $30.2 million to $1.2 billion in 2001. The decrease in our SG&A expenses was attributable primarily
to the savings that resulted from our reorganization efforts during fiscal year 2001 as discussed below, our continued cost control 
measures, and the lower volume of business. However, as a result of the significant decline in our revenues, SG&A expenses as a percentage
of net sales increased to 4.7% in 2001 from 3.9% in 2000. We continue to pursue and implement business process improvements and 
organizational changes to create sustained cost reductions without sacrificing customer service over the long-term. However, because of
the decline in our sales, SG&A expenses as a percentage of net revenues are expected to remain above 4.0% over the near term.

We initiated a broad-based reorganization plan in the first half of 2001 with detailed actions implemented primarily in the U.S. and, to a limited
extent, in Europe and Other International to streamline operations and reorganize resources to increase flexibility, improve service and
generate cost savings and operational efficiencies. These actions included restructuring of several functions, consolidation of facilities, and
reductions of headcount. We continue to develop this broad-based plan and expect to implement additional detailed actions in 2002.

In connection with this reorganization effort, we recorded a charge of $41.4 million in fiscal year 2001 ($25.5 million, $13.6 million and $2.3
million in the U.S., Europe, and Other International, respectively). The reorganization charges represented costs of facility consolidations
in the U.S. and Europe and headcount reductions in the U.S., Europe and Other International operations. The reorganization charges 
included $16.7 million in employee termination benefits for approximately 2,150 employees ($10.2 million for approximately 1,550 employees
in the U.S., $4.4 million for approximately 390 employees in Europe, and $2.1 million for approximately 210 employees in Other
International); $21.4 million for closing, downsizing and consolidating facilities ($14.8 million, $6.4 million and $0.2 million in the U.S.,
Europe, and Other International, respectively); and $3.3 million of other costs associated with the reorganization ($0.5 million and $2.8
million in the U.S. and Europe, respectively). We anticipate that these initiatives will be substantially completed within twelve months from
each of the respective commitment dates of the detailed restructuring actions (see Note 3 to consolidated financial statements). We
expect to save approximately $55 million to $70 million of costs annually after these initiatives are complete.

During 2001, we recorded charges of $22.9 million related to the following special items: $10.2 million for the write-off of electronic store-
front technologies software, which were replaced with a more efficient solution during 2001, and inventory management software, which
was no longer required because of our business process and systems improvements; an impairment charge of $3.5 million to reduce our
minority equity investment in an internet-related company to estimated net realizable value; and $9.2 million to reserve fully for our 
outstanding insurance claims with an independent and unrelated former credit insurer, which went into liquidation on October 3, 2001. As
of December 29, 2001, approximately $7.6 million of insurance claims were written-off against the reserve. The remaining claims are
expected to be written-off against the balance of the reserve in 2002.
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Quar ter ly  Data ;  Seasona l i ty
Our quarterly operating results have fluctuated significantly in the past and will likely continue to do so in the future as a result of:
• seasonal variations in the demand for our products and services such as demand in Europe during the summer months, increased Canadian

government purchasing in the first quarter, and worldwide pre-holiday stocking in the retail channel during the September-to-November period;
• competitive conditions in our industry, which may impact the prices charged by our suppliers and/or competitors and the prices we charge our customers;
• variations in our levels of excess inventory and doubtful accounts, and changes in the terms of vendor-sponsored programs such as

price protection and return rights;
• changes in the level of our operating expenses;
• the impact of acquisitions we may make;
• the impact of and possible disruption caused by reorganization efforts;
• the introduction by us or our competitors of new products and services offering improved features and functionality;
• the loss or consolidation of one or more of our significant suppliers or customers;
• product supply constraints;
• interest rate fluctuations, which may increase our borrowing costs, and may influence the willingness of customers and end-users to

purchase products and services;
• currency fluctuations in countries in which we operate; and
• general economic conditions.

Given the general slowdown in the global economy and specifically the demand for IT products and services, these historical variations
may not be indicative of future trends in the near term. Our narrow operating margins may magnify the impact of the foregoing factors
on our operating results.

The following table sets forth certain unaudited quarterly historical financial data for each of the eight quarters in the period ended December 29,
2001. This unaudited quarterly information has been prepared on the same basis as the annual information presented elsewhere herein and, in our
opinion, includes all adjustments (consisting only of normal recurring adjustments) necessary for a fair presentation of the selected quarterly
information. This information should be read in conjunction with the consolidated financial statements and notes thereto included elsewhere in
this Annual Report to Shareowners. The operating results for any quarter shown are not necessarily indicative of results for any future period.

Income Diluted

Income (Loss) Earnings

Income (Loss) Before (Loss) Per Diluted

(Loss) Before Extra- Net Share Before Earnings

Net Gross From Income ordinary Income Extraordinary (Loss)

(in millions, except per share data) Sales Profit Operations Taxes Item (Loss) Item Per Share

Fiscal Year Ended December 29, 2001
Thirteen Weeks Ended (1) (2):

March 31, 2001 $  7,193.5 $  384.2 $  70.5 $   43.0 $  26.4 $  26.4 $  0.18 $   0.18
June 30, 2001 6,017.3 315.6 4.8 (1 4.7) (9.4) (12.0) (0.06) (0.08)
September 29, 2001 5,833.4 307.6 (5.7) (22.1) (13.3) (13.3) (0.09) (0.09)
December 29, 2001 6,142.7 322.5 23.3 9.7 5.6 5.6 0.04 0.04

Fiscal Year Ended December 30, 2000
Thirteen Weeks Ended (3):

April 1, 2000 $  7,796.3 $  366.2 $  70.5 $  152.0 $  94.0 $   96.1 $  0.64 $  0.65
July 1, 2000 7,295.0 361.5 76.4 53.5 33.1 33.3 0.22 0.22
September 30, 2000 7,558.7 387.9 87.2 62.9 38.8 38.9 0.26 0.26
December 30, 2000 8,065.1 440.7 1 19.3 94.1 57.9 57.9 0.39 0.39

(1) Reflects charges related to reorganization plans initiated to streamline operations and reorganize resources. Quarterly charges in 2001 were recorded
as follows: second quarter, $19.1 million; third quarter, $11.7 million; fourth quarter, $10.6 million.

(2) Reflects special items of $22.9 million in 2001 for the write-off of capitalized software ($10.2 million) and charges to reserve fully for outstanding 
insurance claims with an insolvent insurer ($9.2 million) in the third quarter, and an impairment charge on an investment in an internet-related company
($3.5 million) in the fourth quarter.

(3) For the quarter ended April 1, 2000, income before income taxes included a pre-tax gain of approximately $111.5 million, net of related costs, realized
from the sale of Softbank common stock.
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Gross margin increased to 5.1% in 2000 from 4.8% in 1999. The improvement in the gross margin was primarily due to pricing 
policy changes we initiated during the second quarter of 2000 to more appropriately reflect the value and related costs of services we
provide to our customers, partially offset by the impact of changes in vendor terms and conditions including, but not limited to, 
significant reductions in vendor rebates and incentives, tighter restrictions on our ability to return inventory to vendors, and reduced
time periods qualifying for price protection. We have implemented and continue to refine changes to our pricing strategies, inventory
management processes, and administration of vendor subsidized programs. In addition, we continue to change certain of the terms and
conditions offered to our customers to reflect those being imposed by our vendors.

Total SG&A expenses increased 7.8% to $1.2 billion in 2000 from $1.1 billion in 1999, but decreased as a percentage of net sales to 3.9% in
2000 from 4.0% in 1999. The increase in SG&A spending was attributable to increased expenses required to support the growth of our
business. Expenses related to expansion consist of incremental personnel and support costs, lease expenses related to new 
operating facilities, and the expenses associated with the development and maintenance of information systems. The overall decrease in
SG&A expenses as a percentage of net sales is attributable to economies of scale from greater sales volume, and continued cost-control
measures. As noted above, demand for IT products and services in the U.S. has recently softened, which may lead to tempered and/or 
negative sales growth in the U.S. for the next several quarters and a resulting increase in SG&A expenses as a percentage of net sales in
the near term. We continue to pursue and implement process improvements and organizational changes to create sustainable cost reductions
without sacrificing customer service over the long-term.

In 1999, we recorded a charge of $20.3 million related to reorganization efforts primarily in our U.S. and European operations. We did not
incur any reorganization charges in 2000.

Income from operations, excluding reorganization costs, increased as a percentage of net sales to 1.2% in 2000 from 0.8% in 1999. The
increase in our income from operations, excluding reorganization costs, as a percentage of net sales is primarily due to the increase in
gross margin as described above. Our U.S. income from operations, excluding reorganization costs, as a percentage of net sales increased
to 1.5% in 2000 from 0.9% in 1999, primarily as a result of gross margin improvements. Our European income from operations, excluding
reorganization costs, as a percentage of net sales increased to 0.7% in 2000 compared to 0.3% in 1999 also as a result of gross margin
improvements. Our Other International income from operations, excluding reorganization costs, as a percentage of net sales decreased
to 0.5% in 2000 from 1.0% in 1999. The decrease in income from operations as a percentage of net sales for our Other International
was primarily related to our Asia-Pacific operations, which experienced a loss from operations as we continue to invest in infrastructure
and refine our business processes in this developing market.

Other expense (income) consisted primarily of interest, foreign currency exchange losses, gains on sales of available-for-sale securities,
and losses on sales of receivables under our accounts receivable facilities. In 2000, we recorded net other income of $9.1 million, 
compared to $90.5 million in 1999. The decrease in other income is primarily attributable to the lower gain realized on the sale of Softbank
common stock in 2000 compared to 1999. In December 1999, we sold approximately 35% of our original investment in Softbank common
stock for a pre-tax gain of approximately $201.3 million, net of related costs. In January 2000, we sold an additional approximately 15%
of our original holdings in Softbank common stock for a pre-tax gain of approximately $111.5 million, net of related costs. Excluding the
gains realized on the sales of Softbank common stock, our net other expense was $102.4 million in 2000 compared to $110.8 million in
1999. The decrease in net other expense was related to reduced borrowing costs, due to the decrease in the average borrowings 
outstanding in 2000 compared to 1999 resulting from improved working capital management, the use of proceeds received from the
sale of Softbank common stock in December 1999 and January 2000 to reduce existing indebtedness, partially offset by an increase in
interest rates for the same period.

Our provision for income taxes increased 25.2% to $138.8 million in 2000 from $110.9 million in 1999, reflecting the 24.8% increase in our
income before income taxes and extraordinary item. Our effective tax rate remained relatively consistent at 38.3% in 2000 compared to
38.2% in 1999.

In 2000 and 1999, we repurchased convertible debentures with a total carrying value of $235.2 million and $56.5 million, respectively, as of
their repurchase dates for approximately $231.3 million and $50.3 million in cash, respectively. Our convertible debenture repurchases
resulted in an extraordinary gain of $2.4 million and $3.8 million in 2000 and 1999, respectively, net of $1.5 million and $2.4 million in
income taxes, respectively.
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Capital Resources
Our cash and cash equivalents totaled $273.1 million and $150.6 million at December 29, 2001 and December 30, 2000, respectively.

In March 2000, we entered into a revolving five-year accounts receivable securitization program in the U.S., which provides for the
issuance of up to $700 million in commercial paper. In connection with this program most of our U.S. trade accounts receivable are
transferred without recourse to a trust, in exchange for a beneficial interest in the total pool of trade receivables. The trust has issued
fixed-rate, medium-term certificates and has the ability to support a commercial paper program through the issuance of undivided
interests in the pool of trade receivables to third parties. Sales of undivided interests to third parties under this program result in a
reduction of total accounts receivable in our consolidated balance sheet. The excess of the trade accounts receivable transferred over
amounts sold to and held by third parties at any one point in time represents our retained interest in the transferred accounts receivable
(“securitized receivables”) and is shown in our consolidated balance sheet as a separate caption under accounts receivable. Retained
interests are carried at their fair market value, estimated as the net realizable value, which considers the relatively short liquidation
period and includes an estimated provision for credit losses. At December 29, 2001 and December 30, 2000, the amount of undivided
interests sold to and held by third parties under this U.S. program totaled $80.0 million and $700.0 million, respectively.

We also have certain other revolving facilities relating to accounts receivable in Europe and Canada which provide up to approximately
$248 million of additional financing capacity. Under these programs, approximately $142.3 million and $210.2 million of trade accounts
receivable were sold to and held by third parties at December 29, 2001 and December 30, 2000, respectively, resulting in a further reduction
of trade accounts receivable in our consolidated balance sheet.

The aggregate amount of trade accounts receivable sold to and held by third parties under the U.S., Europe and Canada programs, or 
off-balance sheet debt, as of December 29, 2001 and December 30, 2000 totaled approximately $222.3 million and $910.2 million,
respectively. This decrease reflects our lower financing needs as a result of our lower volume of business and improvements in working
capital management. The decrease in amounts sold to and held by third parties generally results in an increase in our retained interests
in securitized receivables. We believe that available funding under our accounts receivable financing programs provides us increased 
flexibility to make incremental investments in strategic growth initiatives and to manage working capital requirements, and that there
are sufficient trade accounts receivable to support the U.S., European and Canadian accounts receivable financing programs.

As is customary in trade accounts receivable securitization arrangements, credit ratings downgrading the third party issuer of commercial
paper or a back-up liquidity provider (which provides a source of funding if the commercial paper market cannot be accessed) could result
in an adverse change or loss of our financing capacity under these programs if the commercial paper issuer and/or liquidity back-up
provider is not replaced. Loss of such financing capacity could have a material adverse effect on our financial condition and results of
operations. However, based on our assessment of the duration of these programs, the history and strength of the financial partners
involved, other historical data, and the remoteness of such contingencies, we believe it is unlikely that any of these risks will occur.

On August 16, 2001, we sold $200.0 million of 9.875% senior subordinated notes due 2008 at an issue price of 99.382%, resulting in net
cash proceeds of approximately $195.1 million, net of issuance costs of approximately $3.7 million. Under the terms of these notes, we are
required to comply with certain restrictive covenants, including restrictions on the incurrence of additional indebtedness, the amount
of dividends we can pay and the amount of capital stock we can repurchase (see Note 7 to consolidated financial statements for further
discussion on the terms for redemption).

On August 16, 2001, we also entered into interest rate swap agreements with two financial institutions, the effect of which was to swap
our fixed rate obligation on our senior subordinated notes for a floating rate obligation based on 90-day LIBOR plus 4.260%. All other
financial terms of the interest rate swap agreement are identical to those of the senior subordinated notes, except for the quarterly payments
of interest, which will be on November 15, February 15, May 15 and August 15 in each year, commencing on November 15, 2001 and ending
on the termination date of the swap agreement. These interest rate swap arrangements contain ratings conditions requiring more 
frequent posting of collateral and at minimum increments if our ratings decline to certain set levels (for example, the ratings condition
is triggered if our S&P ratings decline to “B” or below or our Moody’s ratings decline to “B2” or below). At December 29, 2001, the
marked-to-market value of the interest rate swap amounted to $6.1 million, which is recorded in other assets with an offsetting
adjustment to the hedged debt, bringing the total carrying value of the senior subordinated notes to $204.9 million. 
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Our net sales in the fourth quarter of each fiscal year have generally been higher than those in the other three quarters in the same fiscal
year. However, in 2001, our first quarter sales were higher than our fourth quarter sales because of the sluggish demand for technology
products and services which worsened after the first quarter of 2001. The general trend of higher fourth quarter net sales is attributable
to calendar year-end business purchases and holiday period purchases made by customers.

L iqu id i ty  and  Cap ita l  Resources

Cash Flows
We have financed our growth and cash needs largely through income from operations, borrowings, sales of accounts receivable through
established accounts receivable facilities, trade and supplier credit, the sale of convertible debentures in June 1998 and senior subordinated
notes in August 2001, and the sale of Softbank common stock in December 1999 and January 2000 (see Notes 2 and 8 to consolidated
financial statements).

One of our ongoing objectives is to improve the use of working capital and put assets to work through increasing inventory turns and
steady management of vendor payables and customer receivables. In this regard and in combination with the lower volume of business,
we reduced our overall debt level in 2001, thereby lowering our overall debt-to-capitalization ratio, including off-balance sheet debt
related to our accounts receivable financing programs, to 26.7% at December 29, 2001 compared to 43.7% and 45.0% at December 30,
2000 and January 1, 2000, respectively. Although we have realized significant improvements in working capital management and debt
reduction and we continue to strive for further improvements, no assurance can be made that we will be able to maintain our current
debt levels. The following is a detailed discussion of our cash flows for 2001, 2000 and 1999.

Net cash provided by operating activities was $286.7 million, $839.1 million, and $586.4 million in 2001, 2000 and 1999, respectively.
The significant decrease in cash provided by our operating activities was primarily attributable to the reduction in the amounts sold to
and held by third parties under our accounts receivable programs and the decrease in net income, partially offset by a greater decrease
in other working capital items primarily resulting from our continued focus on managing working capital and the overall lower volume
of business. The increase in cash provided by operating activities in 2000 compared to 1999 was primarily attributable to higher net
income and an increase in the amount of accounts receivable sold to and held by third parties under our accounts receivable facilities,
offset by a decrease in trade creditor financing of product inventory.

Net cash used by investing activities was $70.3 million, $19.5 million, and $138.4 million in 2001, 2000, and 1999, respectively. The net cash
used by investing activities in 2001 was primarily due to capital expenditures of approximately $86.4 million, partially offset by cash 
proceeds from the sale of property and equipment of approximately $20.3 million. In 2000, we used approximately $146.1 million in cash
for capital expenditures, which was partially offset by the proceeds from the sale of Softbank common stock totaling approximately $119.2
million. In 1999, we used approximately $241.9 million in cash for acquisitions, net of cash acquired, and $135.3 million for capital 
expenditures, which were partially offset by the proceeds from the sale of Softbank common stock totaling approximately $230.1 million.

Net cash used by financing activities was $78.3 million, $805.3 million, and $427.3 million in 2001, 2000, and 1999, respectively. Net cash
used by financing activities in 2001 primarily resulted from the repurchase of convertible debentures for $225.0 million and net repayments
of our revolving credit and other debt facilities. This was primarily enabled through cash provided by operations, continued focus on
working capital management and the reduction in net revenues, as well as by the proceeds from our issuance of senior subordinated
notes of $195.1 million. Net cash used by financing activities in 2000 was primarily due to the repurchase of the convertible debentures
of $231.3 million and the net repayment of borrowings under the revolving credit facilities and other debt facilities through the use of
cash provided by operations and the continued focus on working capital management, as well as the proceeds received from the sale of
Softbank common stock in 2000. Net cash used by financing activities in 1999 was primarily due to the repurchase of the convertible
debentures of $50.3 million and the net repayment of borrowings under the revolving credit facilities through the use of the proceeds
received from the sale of Softbank common stock in 1999, as well as the continued focus on working capital management.

Acquisitions
In December 2001, we concluded a business combination involving certain assets and liabilities of our former subdistributor in the People’s
Republic of China, which was accounted for in accordance with FAS 141. In addition, during September 2001, we acquired certain assets of an
IT distribution business in the United Kingdom. The purchase price for these transactions aggregated $15.9 million in cash and was 
allocated to the assets acquired and liabilities assumed based on their estimated fair values on the transaction dates, resulting in the
recording of approximately $105.4 million of goodwill. These transactions had no significant impact on our consolidated results of operations.
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis (continued)

Proceeds from stock option exercises provide us an additional source of cash. In 2001, 2000, and 1999, cash proceeds from the exercise
of stock options totaled $19.9 million, $10.4 million and $7.4 million, respectively.

In spite of the tightening of terms and availability of credit to business in general, we believe that our existing sources of liquidity, including
cash resources and cash provided by operating activities, supplemented as necessary with funds available under our credit arrangements, will
provide sufficient resources to meet our present and future working capital and cash requirements for at least the next twelve months.

As discussed in Note 8 to consolidated financial statements, we have recorded deferred tax liabilities totaling $118.2 million in 2001 and
2000 associated with realized gains on available-for-sale securities relating to our sales of Softbank common stock. We cannot currently
determine when this matter will be finally resolved with the taxing authorities or if taxes will ultimately be paid. However, we believe that
we will be able to fund any such taxes with our available sources of liquidity.

Capital Expenditures
We presently expect to spend approximately $100 million to $120 million in fiscal 2002 for capital expenditures.

Transact ions  w ith  Re lated  Par t ies
We have loans receivable from certain of our executives and associates. These loans, ranging up to $0.5 million, have interest rates ranging
from 0.0% to 6.75% per annum and are payable from 15 days to five years. At December 29, 2001 and December 30, 2000, our loan receivable
balance was $1.6 million and $1.8 million, respectively.

New Account ing  Standards
Refer to Note 2 to consolidated financial statements for the discussion of new accounting standards.

Market  R isk
We are exposed to the impact of foreign currency fluctuations and interest rate changes due to our international sales and global
funding. In the normal course of business, we employ established policies and procedures to manage our exposure to fluctuations in the
value of foreign currencies and interest rates using a variety of financial instruments. It is our policy to utilize financial instruments to
reduce risks where internal netting cannot be effectively employed. It is our policy not to enter into foreign currency or interest rate
transactions for speculative purposes.

In addition to product sales and costs, we have foreign currency risk related to debt that is denominated in currencies other than the
dollar. Our foreign currency risk management objective is to protect our earnings and cash flows resulting from sales, purchases and
other transactions from the adverse impact of exchange rate movements. Foreign exchange risk is managed by using forward and option
contracts to offset exchange risk associated with receivables and payables. By policy, we maintain hedge coverage between minimum and
maximum percentages. Currency interest rate swaps are used to hedge foreign currency denominated principal and interest payments
related to intercompany and third-party loans. During 2001, hedged transactions were denominated primarily in euros, Canadian dollars,
Australian dollars, Danish krone, Swedish krona, Swiss francs, Norwegian kroner, Indian rupees and Mexican pesos.

We are exposed to changes in interest rates primarily as a result of our long-term debt used to maintain liquidity and finance inventory,
capital expenditures and business expansion. Our interest rate risk management objective is to limit the impact of interest rate changes
on earnings and cash flows and to lower our overall borrowing costs. To achieve our objectives we use a combination of fixed- and variable-
rate debt and interest rate swaps. As of December 29, 2001 and December 30, 2000, approximately 45% and 40%, respectively, of our
outstanding debt had fixed interest rates. We, however, entered into interest rate swap agreements with two financial institutions in
August 2001, the effect of which was to swap our fixed rate obligation on our senior subordinated notes for a floating rate obligation
based on 90-day LIBOR plus 4.260%.

Market  R isk  Management
Foreign exchange and interest rate risk and related derivatives use are monitored using a variety of techniques including a review of 
market value, sensitivity analysis and Value-at-Risk (“VaR”). The VaR model determines the maximum potential loss in the fair value of
market-sensitive financial instruments assuming a one-day holding period. The VaR model estimates were made assuming normal market
conditions and a 95% confidence level. There are various modeling techniques that can be used in the VaR computation. Our 
computations are based on interrelationships between currencies and interest rates (a “variance/co-variance” technique). These 
interrelationships were determined by observing foreign currency market changes and interest rate changes over the preceding 90 days.
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We and our subsidiaries outside the U.S. also have various lines of credit, commercial paper, short-term overdraft facilities and other 
senior credit facilities with various financial institutions worldwide, which provide for borrowing capacity aggregating approximately
$585 million and $750 million at December 29, 2001 and December 30, 2000, respectively. Most of these arrangements are on an
uncommitted basis and are reviewed periodically for renewal. At December 29, 2001 and December 30, 2000, we had borrowings of $250.8
million and $250.1 million, respectively, outstanding under these facilities.

We have a revolving senior credit facility with a bank syndicate providing an aggregate credit availability of $500 million. Under this 
senior credit facility, we are required to comply with certain financial covenants, including minimum tangible net worth, restrictions on
funded debt and interest coverage. This senior credit facility also restricts the amount of dividends we can pay as well as the amount of
common stock that we can repurchase annually. This senior credit facility expires in October 2002. At December 29, 2001 and December
30, 2000, we had approximately $2.0 million, for both years, in outstanding borrowings under this credit facility. At December 30, 2000,
we also had $73.5 million outstanding under credit facilities that have since expired.  We continue to evaluate our long-range financing
requirements including other alternatives to these senior credit facilities; however, we cannot assure you that we will be able to raise
capital on terms acceptable to us to replace the full amount of these expiring credit facilities.

On June 9, 1998, we sold $1.3 billion aggregate principal amount at maturity of our zero coupon convertible senior debentures due 2018.
Gross proceeds from the offering were $460.4 million, which represented a yield to maturity of 5.375% per annum. In 2000, we 
repurchased convertible debentures with carrying values of $235.2 million for $231.3 million in cash, resulting in an extraordinary
gain of $2.4 million, net of taxes of $1.5 million. In 2001, we repurchased more than 99% of the remaining outstanding convertible 
debentures with a total carrying value of $220.8 million for $225.0 million in cash, resulting in an extraordinary loss of $2.6 million,
net of tax benefits of $1.6 million. At December 29, 2001, our remaining convertible debentures had an outstanding balance of $0.4 million
and were convertible into approximately 5,000 shares of our Class A Common Stock.

We are in compliance with all covenants or other requirements set forth in our accounts receivable financing programs and credit 
agreements discussed above. The following summarizes our financing capacity and contractual obligations at December 29, 2001 (in 
millions), and the effect scheduled payments on such obligations are expected to have on our liquidity and cash flows in future periods.

Payments Due by Period

Significant Balance Less Than 1 - 3 After

Contractual Obligations Capacity Outstanding 1 Year Years 3 Years

Overdraft and others $   585.0 $  250.8 $  250.8 $         - $         -
Revolving credit 500.0 2.0 2.0 - -
Convertible debentures 0.4 0.4 - 0.4 -
Senior subordinated notes 204.9 204.9 - - 204.9
Accounts receivable financing programs (1) 973.0 222.3 - 167.3 55.0
Noncancelable operating leases (2) 533.6 76.1 178.5 279.0

Total $ 2,263.3 $  1,214.0 $  328.9 $  346.2 $  538.9

(1) Payments due by period were classified based on the maturity dates of the related financing programs.
(2) The Company leases the majority of its facilities and certain equipment under noncancelable operating leases. Renewal and purchase options at fair

values exist for a substantial portion of the leases. Amounts represent future minimum rental commitments on operating leases that have remaining
noncancelable lease terms in excess of one year.
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Ingram Micro Inc. Consolidated Balance Sheet

(Dollars in 000s, except per share data) Fiscal Year End 2001 2000

Assets
Current assets:

Cash and cash equivalents $      273,059 $      150,560
Investment in available-for-sale securities 24,031 52,897
Accounts receivable:

Trade accounts receivable 1,760,581 1,945,496
Retained interest in securitized receivables 537,376 407, 1 76
Total accounts receivable (less allowances of $79,927 and $96,994) 2,297,957 2,352,672

Inventories 1,623,628 2,9 19 , 1 1 7
Other current assets 238, 1 7 1 294,838

Total current assets 4,456,846 5,770,084

Property and equipment, net 303,833 350,829
Goodwill, net 508,227 430,853
Other 33,1 0 1 57,2 1 6

Total assets $   5,302,007 $   6,608,982

Liabilities And Stockholders’ Equity
Current liabilities:

Accounts payable $    2,607,1 45 $    3,725,080
Accrued expenses 279,669 350,1 1 1
Current maturities of long-term debt 252,803 42,774

Total current liabilities 3,139,6 1 7 4,1 17,965

Convertible debentures 405                220,035
Revolving credit facilities and other long-term debt - 282,809
Senior subordinated notes 204,899 -
Deferred income taxes and other liabilities 89,788 113,78 1

Total liabilities 3,434,709 4,734,590

Commitments and contingencies (Note 10)

Stockholders’ equity:
Preferred Stock, $0.01 par value, 25,000,000 shares 

authorized; no shares issued and outstanding - -
Class A Common Stock, $0.01 par value, 500,000,000 shares

authorized; 149,024,793 and 75,798,115 shares issued
and outstanding in 2001 and 2000, respectively 1,490 758

Class B Common Stock, $0.01 par value, 135,000,000 shares
authorized; 0 and 70,409,806 shares issued
and outstanding in 2001 and 2000, respectively - 704

Additional paid-in capital 691,958 664,840
Retained earnings 1,227,945 1,221,208
Accumulated other comprehensive loss (53,4 1 6) (1 1,936)
Unearned compensation (679) (1,1 82)

Total stockholders’ equity 1,867,298 1,874,392
Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity $   5,302,007 $   6,608,982

See accompanying notes to these consolidated financial statements.
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The value of foreign currency options does not change on a one-to-one basis with changes in the underlying currency rate. The potential
loss in option value was adjusted for the estimated sensitivity (the “delta” and “gamma”) to changes in the underlying currency rate. The
model includes all of our forwards, options, cross-currency swaps and nonfunctional currency denominated debt (i.e., our market-
sensitive derivative and other financial instruments as defined by the SEC). The accounts receivable and accounts payable denominated
in foreign currencies, which certain of these instruments are intended to hedge, were excluded from the model.

The VaR model is a risk analysis tool and does not purport to represent actual losses in fair value that will be incurred by us, nor does it
consider the potential effect of favorable changes in market rates. It also does not represent the maximum possible loss that may occur.
Actual future gains and losses will likely differ from those estimated because of changes or differences in market rates and 
interrelationships, hedging instruments and hedge percentages, timing and other factors.

The following table sets forth the estimated maximum potential one-day loss in fair value, calculated using the VaR model (in millions).
The decrease in VaR from interest rate sensitive financial instruments reflects a change in the composition of our portfolio from
December 31, 2000 to December 29, 2001. We believe that the hypothetical loss in fair value of our derivatives would be offset by gains in
the value of the underlying transactions being hedged.

Interest Rate Currency Sensitive

Sensitive Financial Financial Combined

Instruments Instruments Portfolio

VaR as of December 29, 2001 $    6.3 $     0.2 $     6.1
VaR as of December 30, 2000 1 1 .7 0.1 10.2

Euro  Convers ion
On January 1, 1999, twelve of the 15 member countries of the European Union adopted the euro as their common legal currency. As 
of December 29, 2001, we had fully converted all systems and processes in the nine euro-zone countries where we have operations. No
material adverse effect on our financial position or results of operations has arisen as a result of the conversions and costs associated
with the euro conversion were not material. Since the implementation of the euro, we have experienced improved efficiencies in our cash
management program in Europe as all intracompany transactions within participating countries are conducted in euros.

Cautionary Statements for  Purposes of  the Safe Harbor Provis ions of  the Pr ivate Securit ies  L it igat ion Reform
Act of  1995
The matters in this Annual Report that are forward-looking statements are based on our current expectations that involve certain risks,
including, without limitation: intense competition in the U.S., Europe and Other International; the severe downturn in economic
conditions (particularly purchases of technology products) may continue or worsen; future terrorist or military actions; continued
pricing and margin pressures; failure to adjust costs in a timely fashion in response to a sudden decrease in demand; the potential
for declines in inventory values and continued restrictive vendor terms and conditions; the potential decline as well as seasonal variations
in demand for our products and services; unavailability of adequate capital; inability to manage future adverse industry trends; failure of
information systems; significant credit loss resulting from significant credit exposure to reseller customers and negative trends in their
businesses; interest rate and foreign currency fluctuations; adverse impact of governmental controls and political or economic instability
on foreign operations; changes in local, regional, and global economic conditions and practices; dependency on key individuals and inability
to retain personnel; product supply shortages; the potential termination of a supply agreement with a major supplier; difficulties and
risks associated with integrating operations and personnel in acquisitions; disruption due to reorganization activities; rapid product
improvement and technological change and resulting obsolescence risks; and dependency on independent shipping companies.

We have instituted in the past and continue to institute changes to our strategies, operations and processes to address these risk factors
and to mitigate their impact on our results of operations and financial position. However, no assurances can be given that we will be 
successful in these efforts. For a further discussion of these and other significant factors to consider in connection with forward-looking
statements concerning us, reference is made to Exhibit 99.01 of our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 29,
2001; other risks or uncertainties may be detailed from time to time in our future SEC filings.
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Ingram Micro Inc. Consolidated Statement of Stockholders’ Equity

Accumulated

Additional Other

Commons Stock Paid-in Retained Comprehensive Unearned

(Dollars in OOOs) Class A Class B Capital Earnings Income (Loss) Compensation Total

January 2, 1999 $   665 $   743 $ 59 1,235 $    81 1,616 $   (4,9 1 4) $       (88) $ 1,399,257
Noncash compensation charge 

related to stock options 1,978 1,978
Stock options exercised 17 7,387 7,404
Income tax benefit from

exercise of stock options 1 3,428 13,428
Vesting of Redeemable

Class B Common Stock 6 3,90 1 3,907
Conversion of Class B to Class

A Common Stock 22 (22) -
Grant of restricted Class A

Common Stock 3 3,455 (3,458) -
Issuance of Class A Common

Stock related to Employee
Stock Purchase Plan 5 1 2,534 12,539

Warrants issued 1 1,264 1 1 ,264
Amortization of unearned

compensation 450 450
Comprehensive income 183,419 333,1 99 516,618
January 1, 2000 712 727 645,1 82 995,035 328,285 (3,096) 1,966,845
Noncash compensation charge

related to stock options 1,493 1,493
Stock options exercised 16 1 0,38 1 10,397
Income tax benefit from

exercise of stock options 2,67 1 2,67 1
Vesting of Redeemable 

Class B Common Stock 6 3,705 3,7 1 1
Conversion of Class B to Class

A Common Stock 29 (29) -
Forfeiture of restricted Class A

Common Stock (485) 192 (293)
Issuance of Class A Common

Stock related to Employee
Stock Purchase Plan 1 1,893 1,894

Amortization of unearned
compensation 1,722 1,722

Comprehensive income (loss) 226,173 (340,221) (1 1 4,048)
December 30, 2000 758 704 664,840 1,221,208 (1 1,936) (1,182) 1,874,392
Stock options exercised 26 1 9,886 19,9 12
Income tax benefit from

exercise of stock options 4,927 4,927
Conversion of Class B to Class A

Common Stock 704 (704) -
Grant of restricted Class A

Common Stock 1 789 (790) -
Issuance of Class A Common

Stock related to Employee
Stock Purchase Plan 1 1,516 1,517

Amortization of unearned
compensation 1,293 1,293

Comprehensive income (loss) 6,737 (41,480) (34,743)
December 29, 2001 $ 1,490 $       - $ 691,958 $ 1,227,945 $ (53,416) $     (679) $ 1,867,298

See accompanying notes to these consolidated financial statements.
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Ingram Micro Inc. Consolidated Statement of Income

(Dollars in 000s, except per share data)                                               Fiscal Year 2001 2000 1999

Net sales $ 25,186,933 $ 30,715,149 $ 28,068,642

Cost of sales 23,857,034 29,158,851 26,732,479

Gross profit 1,329,899 1,556,298 1 ,336,1 6 3

Expenses:
Selling, general and administrative 1,1 72,665 1,202,861 1,1 1 5,854
Reorganization costs 4 1 , 4 1 1 - 20,305
Special items 22,893 - -

1,236,969 1,202,861 1 , 1 36,159

Income from operations 92,930 353,437 200,004

Other expense (income):
Interest income (16 ,256) (8,527) (4,338)
Interest expense 55,624 88,726 101 ,69 1
Losses on sales of receivables 20,332 13,351 7,223
Gain on sale of available-for-sale securities - (1 1 1,458) (201 ,3 18)
Other 17,295 8,836 6,253

76,995 (9,072) (90,489)

Income before income taxes
and extraordinary item 15,935 362,509 290,493

Provision for income taxes 6,588 138,756 1 1 0,852

Income before extraordinary item 9,347 223,753 1 79,64 1

Extraordinary gain (loss) on repurchase of debentures, 
net of ($1,634), $1,469 and $2,405 in income taxes (2,610) 2,420 3,778

Net income $ 6,737 $ 226,173 $ 1 8 3,419

Basic earnings per share:
Income before extraordinary item $ 0.06 $ 1.54 $ 1.25
Extraordinary gain (loss) on repurchase of debentures (0.01) 0.01 0.03

Net income $ 0.05 $ 1.55 $ 1.28

Diluted earnings per share:
Income before extraordinary item $ 0.06 $ 1.51 $ 1.2 1
Extraordinary gain (loss) on repurchase of debentures (0.02) 0.01 0.03

Net income $ 0.04 $ 1.52 $ 1.24

See accompanying notes to these consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
(Dollars in 000s, except per share data)

Note  1  -  Organ izat ion  and  Bas is  of  Presentat ion
Ingram Micro Inc. (“Ingram Micro”) is primarily engaged, directly and through its wholly- and majority-owned subsidiaries, in distribution
of information technology products and services worldwide. Ingram Micro operates in the United States, Europe, Canada, Latin America
and Asia-Pacific.

Note  2  -  S ign i f icant  Account ing  Po l ic ies

Bas is  of  Conso l idat ion
The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Ingram Micro and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to herein as the
“Company”). All significant intercompany accounts and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation.

Fisca l  Year
The fiscal year of the Company is a 52- or 53-week period ending on the Saturday nearest to December 31. All references herein to “2001,”
“2000,” and “1999” represent the 52-week fiscal years ended December 29, 2001, December 30, 2000, and January 1, 2000, respectively.

Use  of  Est imates
Preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles requires management to make estimates
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the 
financial statement date, and reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the reporting period. Significant estimates primarily
relate to realizable value of accounts receivable; vendor programs; inventories; long-lived assets, goodwill, and intangible assets; income
taxes; and commitments and contingencies. Actual results could differ from these estimates.

Revenue  Recogn it ion
In December 1999, the Securities and Exchange Commission (the “SEC”) issued Staff Accounting Bulletin No. 101 (“SAB 101”). SAB 101 
summarizes the SEC’s views in applying generally accepted accounting principles to revenue recognition. The adoption of SAB 101 had no
material impact on the Company’s financial position or results of operations.

Revenue on products shipped is recognized when the risks and rights of ownership are substantially passed to the customer. Service 
revenues are recognized upon delivery of the services. Service revenues have represented less than 10% of total net sales for 2001, 2000
and 1999. The Company, under specific conditions, permits its customers to return or exchange products. The provision for estimated
sales returns is recorded concurrently with the recognition of revenue.

Vendor  Programs
Funds received from vendors for price protection, product rebates, marketing and training, and promotion programs are generally
recorded, net of direct costs, as adjustments to product costs, revenue or selling, general and administrative expenses according to the
nature of the program.

The Company generated approximately 39% of its net sales in fiscal 2001, 42% in 2000, and 39% in 1999 from products purchased from
three vendors.

Warrant ies
The Company’s suppliers generally warrant the products distributed by the Company and allow returns of defective products, including
those that have been returned to the Company by its customers. The Company does not independently warrant the products it 
distributes; however, the Company does warrant the following: (1) its services with regard to products that it configures for its customers,
and (2) products that it builds to order from components purchased from other sources. Provision for estimated warranty costs is 
recorded at the time of sale and periodically adjusted to reflect actual experience. Warranty expense is not material to the Company’s
consolidated statement of income.
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Ingram Micro Inc. Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

(Dollars in 000s)      Fiscal Year 2001 2000 1999

Cash flows from operating activities:
Net income $     6,737 $  226,1 73 $   183,419
Adjustments to reconcile net income to

cash provided by operating activities:
Depreciation 94,017 86,47 1 74,70 1
Amortization of goodwill 20,963 22,039 22,900

Noncash charges for write-off of property and
equipment, software, and impairment of investment 21,504 - -

Noncash charges for interest and compensation 6,993 23,1 45 28,870
Deferred income taxes 7,553 50,757 22,524
Pre-tax gain on sale of available-for-sale securities - (1 1 1,458) (201,3 18)
Loss (gain) on repurchase of debentures (net of tax) 2,610 (2,420) (3,778)
Changes in operating assets and liabilities, net of 

effects of acquisitions:
Changes in amounts sold under accounts

receivable programs (687,935) 647,600 162,588
Accounts receivable 643,836 (1 42,357) (256,854)
Inventories 1,292,429 556,222 (307,940)
Other current assets 45,0 1 1 53,850 (1 0 1,1 27)
Accounts payable (1,100,279) (6 1 4,398) 899,574
Accrued expenses (66 ,74 1) 43,453 62,877
Cash provided by operating activities 286,698 839,077 586,436

Cash flows from investing activities:
Purchase of property and equipment (86,438) (146,1 04) (135,260)
Proceeds from sale of property and equipment 20,289 16,400 10,433
Acquisitions, net of cash acquired (15,923) (4,620) (241,928)
Net proceeds from sale of available-for-sale securities - 1 19,228 230,109
Other 1 1,764 (4,385) (1,795)

Cash used by investing activities (70,308) (1 9,48 1) (138,441)

Cash flows from financing activities:
Repurchase of Redeemable Class B Common Stock (39) (89) (107)
Proceeds from exercise of stock options 19,9 12 10,397 7,404
Repurchase of debentures (224,977) (231,330) (50,32 1)
Net proceeds from issuance of senior subordinated notes 195,084 - -
Proceeds from (repayment of) debt (36,20 1) (1 56,232) 123,999
Net repayments under revolving credit facilities (32,1 09) (428,053) (508,250)

Cash used by financing activities (78,330) (805,307) (427,275)

Effect of exchange rate changes on cash (15,56 1) 8,1 1 9 10,750
Increase in cash 122,499 22,408 31,470
Cash, beginning of year 150,560 1 28,1 5 2 96,682
Cash, end of year $   273,059 $   150,560 $    1 28,1 52

Supplemental disclosures of cash flow information:
Cash payments during the year:

Interest $     47,246 $     72,953 $     72,343
Income taxes 43,858 40,438 96,682

Noncash investing activities during the year:
Assets acquired in exchange for liabilities assumed 157,700 - -
Equity incentive plan stock issuance 790 - 3,458

See accompanying notes to these consolidated financial statements.

34



Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
(Dollars in 000s, except per share data)

Goodwi l l
Goodwill represents the excess of the purchase price over the fair value of the identifiable net assets acquired in an acquisition accounted
for using the purchase method, and is amortized on a straight-line basis over periods ranging from 10 to 30 years. Accumulated amortization
was $97,523 at December 29, 2001 and $76,560 at December 30, 2000.  

Investments  in  Ava i lab le- for-Sa le  Secur i t ies
The Company classifies its existing marketable equity securities as available-for-sale in accordance with the provisions of Statement
of Financial Accounting Standards No. 115, “Accounting for Certain Investments in Debt and Equity Securities.” These securities are
carried at fair market value, with unrealized gains and losses reported in stockholders’ equity as a component of accumulated other
comprehensive income (loss). Realized gains or losses on securities sold are based on the specific identification method.

In December 1998, the Company purchased 2,972,400 shares of common stock of SOFTBANK Corp. (“Softbank”), Japan’s largest 
distributor of software, peripherals and networking products, for approximately $50,262. During December 1999, the Company sold
1,040,400 shares or approximately 35% of its original investment in Softbank common stock for approximately $230,109 resulting in
a pre-tax gain of approximately $201,318, net of related expenses. In January 2000, the Company sold an additional 445,800 shares
or approximately 15% of its original holdings in Softbank common stock for approximately $119,228, net of expenses, resulting in a
pre-tax gain of approximately $111,458. The realized gains, net of expenses, associated with the sales of Softbank common stock in
January 2000 and December 1999 totaled $69,327 and $125,220, respectively, net of deferred taxes of $42,131 and $76,098, respectively
(see Note 8). The Company used the net proceeds from the sales primarily to repay existing indebtedness. During April 2000, Softbank
effected a 3 for 1 stock split. All Softbank share information has been adjusted to give retroactive effect to Softbank’s stock split.

In connection with the December 1999 sale of Softbank common stock, the Company issued warrants to Softbank for the purchase of
1,500,000 shares of the Company’s Class A Common Stock with an exercise price of $13.25 per share, which approximated the market price
of the Company’s common stock on the warrant issuance date. The warrants were exercisable immediately and have a five-year term. The
estimated fair value of these warrants upon issuance was approximately $11,264 and was determined using the Black-Scholes option-pricing
model using the following assumptions:

Risk-free interest rate 6.27%
Term of warrant 5 years
Expected stock volatility 55.4%

The estimated fair value of the warrants has been included in other expenses in the Company’s consolidated statement of income for fiscal 1999.

At December 29, 2001 and December 30, 2000, the unrealized holding gain (loss) associated with the Softbank common stock totaled
($672) and $16,965, respectively, net of ($428) and $10,801, respectively, in deferred income taxes.

Concentrat ion  of  Cred it  R isk
Financial instruments that potentially subject the Company to significant concentrations of credit risk consist principally of trade
accounts receivable and derivative financial instruments. Credit risk with respect to trade accounts receivable is limited due to the large
number of customers and their dispersion across geographic areas. No single customer accounts for 10% or more of the Company’s net
sales. The Company performs ongoing credit evaluations of its customers’ financial conditions, obtains credit insurance in certain 
locations and requires collateral in certain circumstances. The Company maintains an allowance for potential credit losses.

Der ivat ive  F inanc ia l  Instruments
The Company operates internationally with distribution facilities in various locations around the world. The Company reduces its exposure
to fluctuations in interest rates and foreign exchange rates by creating offsetting positions through the use of derivative financial
instruments. The market risk related to the foreign exchange agreements is offset by changes in the valuation of the underlying items
being hedged. The majority of the Company’s derivative financial instruments have terms of 90 days or less. The Company currently
does not use derivative financial instruments for trading or speculative purposes, nor is the Company a party to leveraged derivatives.
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Fore ign  Currency  Trans lat ion  and  Remeasurement
Financial statements of foreign subsidiaries, for which the functional currency is the local currency, are translated into United States
(“U.S.”) dollars using the exchange rate at each balance sheet date for assets and liabilities and a weighted average exchange rate for each
period for statement of income items. Translation adjustments are recorded in accumulated other comprehensive income, a component of
stockholders’ equity. The functional currency of the Company’s subsidiaries in Latin America and certain countries within the Company’s
Asia-Pacific operations is the U.S. dollar; accordingly, the monetary assets and liabilities of these subsidiaries are translated into U.S. 
dollars at the exchange rate in effect at the balance sheet date.  Revenues, expenses, gains or losses are translated at the average exchange
rate for the period, and nonmonetary assets and liabilities are translated at historical rates. The resultant remeasurement gains and 
losses of these subsidiaries are recognized in the consolidated statement of income. Gains and losses from foreign currency transactions
are included in the consolidated statement of income. Included in other expenses was $5,204, $3,322 and $2,583 in 2001, 2000, and 1999,
respectively, which represented net foreign exchange losses resulting from remeasurement and foreign exchange transactions.

Fa ir  Va lue  of  F inanc ia l  Instruments
The carrying amounts of cash, accounts receivable, accounts payable and other accrued expenses approximate fair value because of the
short maturity of these items. The carrying amounts of outstanding debt issued pursuant to bank credit agreements approximate fair
value because interest rates over the relative term of these instruments approximate current market interest rates. At December 29, 2001,
the Senior Subordinated Notes’ carrying value of $204,899 approximates its fair market value. The estimated fair value of the Zero Coupon
Convertible Senior Debentures including original issue discount was $405 and $219,323 at December 29, 2001 and December 30, 2000,
respectively, based upon quoted market prices. The carrying value at December 29, 2001 and at December 30, 2000 was $405 and
$220,035, respectively.

Cash  and  Cash  Equ iva lents
The Company considers all highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less to be cash equivalents. Book
overdrafts of $162,286 and $184,945 as of December 29, 2001 and December 30, 2000, respectively, are included in accounts payable.

Inventor ies
Inventories are stated at the lower of average cost or market.

Long-L ived  and  Intang ib le  Assets
The Company assesses potential impairments to its long-lived and intangible assets when there is evidence that events or changes in 
circumstances have made recovery of the asset’s carrying value unlikely. An impairment loss would be recognized when the sum of the
expected, undiscounted future net cash flows is less than the carrying amount of the asset. The amount of an impairment loss would be
recognized as the excess of the asset’s carrying value over its fair value.

Proper ty  and  Equ ipment
Property and equipment are recorded at cost and depreciated using the straight-line method over the following estimated useful lives.
The Company also capitalizes computer software costs that meet both the definition of internal-use software and defined criteria for 
capitalization in accordance with Statement of Position No. 98-1, “Accounting for the Cost of Computer Software Developed or Obtained
for Internal Use.” Leasehold improvements are amortized over the shorter of the lease term or the estimated useful life:

Buildings 40 years
Leasehold improvements 3-1 7 years
Distribution equipment 5-7 years
Computer equipment and software 2-8 years

Maintenance, repairs and minor renewals are charged to expense as incurred. Additions, major renewals and betterments to property
and equipment are capitalized.
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The components of accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) are as follows:

Foreign Unrealized Accumulated

Currency Gain (Loss) on Other

Translation Available-for- Comprehensive

Adjustment Sale Securities Income (Loss)

Balance at January 2, 1999 $ (1 1,580) $ 6,666 $ (4,9 14)
Change in foreign currency translation adjustment (17,07 1) - (17,07 1)
Unrealized holding gain arising during the period - 475,490 475,490
Reclassification adjustment for realized gain

included in net income - (1 25,220) (125,220)
Balance at January 1, 2000 (28,651) 356,936 328,285

Change in foreign currency translation adjustment (250) - (250)
Unrealized holding loss arising during the period - (270,644) (270,644)
Reclassification adjustment for realized gain

included in net income - (69,327) (69,327)
Balance at December 30, 2000 (28,901) 1 6,965 (1 1,936)

Change in foreign currency translation adjustment (23,843) - (23,843)
Unrealized holding loss arising during the period - (1 7,637) (17,637)

Balance at December 29, 2001 $ (52,744) $ (672) $ (53,416)

Account ing  for  Stock-Based  Compensat ion
The Company has adopted the disclosure requirements of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 123, “Accounting for Stock
Based Compensation” (“FAS 123”). As permitted by FAS 123, the Company continues to measure compensation cost in accordance with
Accounting Principles Board Opinion No. 25, “Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees” (“APB 25”) and related interpretations, but
provides pro forma disclosures of net income and earnings per share as if the fair-value method had been applied.

Earn ings  Per  Share
The Company reports a dual presentation of Basic Earnings Per Share (“Basic EPS”) and Diluted Earnings Per Share (“Diluted EPS”). Basic
EPS excludes dilution and is computed by dividing net income by the weighted average number of common shares outstanding during the
reported period. Diluted EPS reflects the potential dilution that could occur if stock options and warrants, and other commitments to issue
common stock were exercised using the treasury stock method or the if-converted method, where applicable.

The computation of Basic EPS and Diluted EPS is as follows:

2001 2000 1999 

Income before extraordinary item $ 9,347 $ 223,753 $ 1 79,641 

Weighted average shares 147,51 1 ,408 145,2 13,882 143,404,207 

Basic earnings per share before
extraordinary item $ 0.06 $ 1.54 $ 1.25 

Weighted average shares including the 
dilutive effect of stock options and warrants
(2,536,399; 3,427,109; and 4,380,505
for Fiscal 2001, 2000, and 1999, respectively) 150,047,807 148,640,99 1 147,784,712 

Diluted earnings per share before
extraordinary item $ 0.06 $ 1.51 $ 1.2 1 
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Foreign exchange risk is managed by using forward and option contracts to hedge receivables and payables. Written foreign currency
options are used to mitigate currency risk in conjunction with purchased options. Currency interest rate swaps are used to hedge foreign
currency denominated principal and interest payments related to intercompany and third-party loans.

Effective December 31, 2000, the Company adopted Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 133, “Accounting for Derivative
Instruments and Hedging Activities” (“FAS 133”) as amended by Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 138, “Accounting for
Certain Derivative Instruments and Certain Hedging Activities – an amendment of FASB No. 133.” The adoption of FAS 133 did not have a
material impact on the Company’s consolidated financial position or results of operations. The Company’s derivative financial instruments
under FAS 133 are discussed below.

All derivatives are recorded in the Company’s consolidated balance sheet at fair value. The estimated fair value of derivative financial
instruments represents the amount required to enter into similar offsetting contracts with similar remaining maturities based on
quoted market prices. As disclosed in Note 7, the Company has an interest rate swap that is designated as a fair value hedge.
Changes in the fair value of this derivative are recorded in current earnings and are offset by the like change in the fair value of
the hedged debt instrument. Changes in the fair value of derivatives not designated as hedges are recorded in current earnings.

Prior to the adoption of FAS 133, derivative financial instruments were accounted for on an accrual basis. Income and expense were
recorded in the same category as that arising from the related asset or liability being hedged. Gains and losses resulting from effective
hedges of existing assets, liabilities or firm commitments were deferred and recognized when the offsetting gains and losses were 
recognized on the related hedged items. Gains or losses on written foreign currency options were adjusted to market value at the end of
each accounting period and were not material.

The notional amount of forward exchange contracts and options is the amount of foreign currency bought or sold at maturity. The notional
amount of interest rate swaps is the underlying principal amount used in determining the interest payments exchanged over the life of
the swap. Notional amounts are indicative of the extent of the Company’s involvement in the various types and uses of derivative financial
instruments and are not a measure of the Company’s exposure to credit or market risks through its use of derivatives.

Credit exposure for derivative financial instruments is limited to the amounts, if any, by which the counterparties’ obligations under the
contracts exceed the obligations of the Company to the counterparties. Potential credit losses are minimized through careful evaluation of
counterparty credit standing, selection of counterparties from a limited group of high-quality institutions and other contract provisions.

Derivative financial instruments comprise the following:

2001 2000

Notional Estimated Notional Estimated

Amounts Fair Value Amounts Fair Value

Foreign exchange forward contracts $ 1,049,323 $ 1 5,522 $ 1,14 1,702 $ (1 1,799)
Purchased foreign currency options 2,545 39 14,333 1 1 1
Written foreign currency options 3,838 ( 1 ) 18,837 (72)
Interest rate swaps 200,000 6,070 1 1 0,000 1 1,775

Comprehens ive  Income (Loss)
Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 130, “Reporting Comprehensive Income” (“FAS 130”) establishes standards for reporting
and displaying comprehensive income and its components in the Company’s consolidated financial statements. Comprehensive
income is defined in FAS 130 as the change in equity (net assets) of a business enterprise during a period from transactions and other
events and circumstances from nonowner sources and is comprised of net income and other comprehensive income (loss).
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Quar ter  Ended  June  30,  2001
In June 2001, the Company initiated a reorganization plan primarily in the U.S. and, to a limited extent, in Europe and Other International
operations. This reorganization plan included the closure of the Newark, California distribution center, downsizing the Miami, Florida 
distribution center, closing the returns processing centers in Santa Ana and Rancho Cucamonga, California and centralizing returns in
the Harrisburg, Pennsylvania returns center; restructuring the U.S. sales force, consolidating the U.S. product management division;
and reorganizing the information technology resources.

In connection with this reorganization effort, the Company recorded a charge of $19,056 ($18,047, $872, and $137 in the U.S., Europe, and
Other International, respectively) for the quarter ended June 30, 2001. Reorganization costs included $10,024 in employee termination
benefits for approximately 1,600 employees ($9,155 for approximately 1,440 employees in the U.S., $732 for approximately 120 employees
in Europe, and $137 for approximately 40 employees in Other International); $8,605 for closing, downsizing and consolidating certain 
distribution and returns processing centers relating primarily to excess lease costs, net of estimated sublease income ($8,490 and $115
in the U.S. and Europe, respectively); and $427 of other costs associated with the reorganization ($402 and $25 in the U.S. and Europe,
respectively). The Company anticipates that these initiatives will be substantially completed within twelve months from June 30, 2001.

At December 29, 2001, the outstanding liability in connection with these reorganization efforts was approximately $4,028. The reorganization
charges and related activities for the period ended December 29, 2001 are summarized as follows:

Amounts Paid

and Charged Remaining

Reorganization Against the Liability at

Costs Liability Adjustments December 29, 2001

Employee termination benefits $ 10,024 $ 8,52 1 $ - $ 1,503
Facility costs 8,605 6,080 - 2,525
Other costs 427 427 - -

Total $             19,056 $ 15,028 $ - $ 4,028

Quar ter  Ended  September  29,  2001
The Company’s reorganization plan for the third quarter of 2001 focused primarily in the U.S. and Europe and, to a limited extent, Other
International. This reorganization plan included facility consolidations in the Company’s U.S. headquarters and two warehouse and
office facilities in Southern Europe, and headcount reductions in Europe and Other International operations.

In connection with this reorganization plan, the Company recorded a charge of $11,745 ($6,274, $4,290, and $1,181 in the U.S., Europe, and
Other International, respectively) for the quarter ended September 29, 2001. Reorganization costs included $2,370 in employee termination
benefits for approximately 250 employees ($1,189 for approximately 150 employees in Europe, and $1,181 for approximately 100 employees
in Other International); $7,590 for closing, downsizing and consolidating facilities ($6,274 and $1,316 in the U.S. and Europe, 
respectively); and $1,785 of other costs associated with the reorganization in Europe. The Company anticipates that these initiatives
will be substantially completed within twelve months from September 29, 2001.

At December 29, 2001, the outstanding liability in connection with these reorganization efforts was approximately $5,579. The reorganization
charges and related activities for the period ended December 29, 2001 are summarized as follows:

Amounts Paid and Remaining

Reorganization Charged Against Liability at

Costs the Liability Adjustments December 29, 2001

Employee termination benefits $ 2,370 $ 2,363 $ - $ 7
Facility costs 7,590 3,362 - 4,228
Other costs 1,785 441 - 1,344

Total $ 1 1 ,745 $ 6,166 $ - $ 5,579
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At December 29, 2001, December 30, 2000, and January 1, 2000, there were $405, $220,035, and $440,943, respectively, in Zero Coupon
Convertible Senior Debentures that were convertible into approximately 5,000; 3,051,000; and 6,428,000 shares of Class A Common Stock
(see Note 7). These potential shares were excluded from the computation of Diluted EPS because their effect would be antidilutive.
Additionally, there were approximately 16,155,000; 1 1,178,000; and 3,483,000 options in 2001, 2000, and 1999, respectively, that were not
included in the computation of Diluted EPS because the exercise price was greater than the average market price of the Class A Common
Stock, thereby resulting in an antidilutive effect.

New Account ing  Standards
In September 2000, the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 140, “Accounting
for Transfers and Servicing of Financial Assets and Extinguishments of Liabilities – a replacement of FASB Statement No. 125” (“FAS 140”).
FAS 140 revises the standards for accounting for securitizations and other transfers of financial assets and collateral. The accounting
standards of FAS 140 are effective for transfers and servicing of financial assets and extinguishments of liabilities occuring after March
31, 2001. The adoption of FAS 140 did not have a material impact on the Company’s consolidated financial position or results of operations.

In June 2001, the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued Statements of Financial Accounting Standards No. 141, “Business
Combinations” (“FAS 141”), and No. 142, “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets” (“FAS 142”). FAS 141 eliminates the pooling-of-interests
method of accounting for business combinations initiated after June 30, 2001 and further clarifies the criteria to recognize intangible
assets separately from goodwill. FAS 141 did not have a material impact on the Company’s consolidated financial position or results of
operations. In accordance with FAS 142, the Company will no longer amortize goodwill or indefinite lived intangible assets effective
the beginning of fiscal 2002. Instead, these assets will be reviewed for impairment upon adoption and at least annually thereafter.
Amortization expense was $20,963, $22,039, and $22,900 in 2001, 2000, and 1999, respectively. The Company is currently evaluating
the effect that the adoption may have on its consolidated financial position. It is expected that, as a result of the implementation of
FAS 142, the Company will record a non-cash charge for the cumulative effect of the change in accounting principle upon adoption
ranging from $260,000 to $290,000, net of tax benefits ranging from $7,000 to $12,000, in the first quarter of 2002.

In July 2001, the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 143, “Accounting for Asset
Retirement Obligations” (“FAS 143”). FAS 143 requires capitalizing asset retirement costs as part of the total cost of the related long-lived
asset and subsequently allocating the total expense to future periods using a systematic and rational method.  Adoption of FAS 143 is
required for the Company’s fiscal year beginning December 29, 2002. The Company has not yet assessed what impact, if any, FAS 143 may
have on its consolidated financial position or results of operations.

In October 2001, the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 144, “Accounting for
the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets” (“FAS 144”). FAS 144 supersedes FAS 121 but retains many of its fundamental provisions.
In addition, FAS 144 expands the scope of discontinued operations to include more disposal transactions.  The provisions of FAS 144 are
effective for the Company’s fiscal year beginning December 30, 2001. The Company is in the process of assessing what impact, if any, FAS
144 may have on its consolidated financial position or results of operations.

Rec lass i f icat ions
Certain prior year balances have been reclassified to conform with the current year presentation.

Note  3  -  Reorgan izat ion  Costs  and  Spec ia l  I tems
The Company recorded aggregate charges of $41,411 for reorganization costs and $22,893 of other special items, which are discussed more
fully below. These charges are presented separately as components of income from operations in the consolidated statement of income.

Reorgan izat ion  Costs
During 2001, the Company initiated a broad-based reorganization plan to streamline operations and reorganize resources to increase
flexibility, generate cost savings and operational efficiencies and improve services. Within the context of this broad-based reorganization
plan, the Company has developed and implemented detailed plans for significant restructuring actions as discussed below.
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In April 1999, the Company acquired ITG Computers, an Australian computer products distributor. In addition, the Company increased
its ownership of Walton Kft., a Hungarian based computer products distributor, to 100% in September 1999, including a 33% interest
previously held by the Company’s majority-owned subsidiary Ingram Macrotron AG. Total cash paid for these acquisitions was 
approximately $4,532, net of cash acquired. These acquisitions were accounted for using the purchase method, and the results of
their operations have been combined with those of the Company since their acquisition dates. The purchase price was allocated to
the assets acquired and liabilities assumed based on their estimated fair values at the dates of acquisition. The excess of the 
purchase prices over the net assets acquired was approximately $4,922 and is being amortized on a straight-line basis over 10 years.

In December 2001, the Company concluded a business combination involving certain assets and liabilities of its former subdistributor in
the People’s Republic of China, which was accounted for in accordance with FAS 141. In addition, during September 2001, the Company
acquired certain assets of an IT distribution business in the United Kingdom. The purchase price for these transactions aggregated
$15,923 in cash and was allocated to the assets acquired and liabilities assumed based on their estimated fair values on the transaction
dates, resulting in the recording of approximately $105,376 of goodwill. These transactions had no significant impact on the Company’s
consolidated results of operations.

Note  5  -  Accounts  Rece ivab le
In March 2000, the Company entered into a revolving five-year accounts receivable securitization program in the U.S., which 
provides for the issuance of up to $700,000 in commercial paper. In connection with this program most of the Company’s U.S. trade
accounts receivable are transferred without recourse to a trust, in exchange for a beneficial interest in the total pool of trade receivables.
The trust has issued fixed-rate, medium-term certificates and has the ability to support a commercial paper program through the issuance
of undivided interests in the pool of trade receivables to third parties. Sales of undivided interests to third parties under this program
result in a reduction of total accounts receivable in the Company’s consolidated balance sheet. The excess of the trade accounts receivable
transferred over amounts sold to and held by third parties at any one point in time represents the Company’s retained interest in the
transferred accounts receivable (“securitized receivables”) and is shown in the Company’s consolidated balance sheet as a separate 
caption under accounts receivable. Retained interests are carried at their fair market value, estimated as the net realizable value, which
considers the relatively short liquidation period and includes an estimated provision for credit losses. At December 29, 2001 and
December 30, 2000, the amount of undivided interests sold to and held by third parties, or what the Company refers to as off-balance
sheet debt, totaled $80,000 and $700,000, respectively.

The Company also has certain other facilities relating to accounts receivable in Europe and Canada which provide up to approximately
$248,000 of additional financing capacity. Under these programs, approximately $142,253 and $210,188 of trade accounts receivable were
sold to and held by third parties at December 29, 2001 and December 30, 2000, respectively, resulting in a further reduction of trade
accounts receivable in the Company’s consolidated balance sheet.

The aggregate amount of trade accounts receivable sold to and held by third parties under the U.S., Europe, and Canada programs, or
off-balance sheet debt, as of December 29, 2001 and December 30, 2000 totaled approximately $222,253 and $910,188, respectively.

Losses in the amount of $20,332, $13,351 and $7,223 in 2001, 2000 and 1999, respectively, related to the sale of trade accounts receivable
under these facilities are included in other expenses in the Company’s consolidated statement of income.

Note  6  -  Proper ty  and  Equ ipment
Property and equipment consist of the following:

Fiscal Year End 2001 2000

Land $ 8,891 $ 6,552
Buildings and leasehold improvements 1 04,395 132,1 58
Distribution equipment 203,207 205,546
Computer equipment and software 333,012 298,933

649,505 643,1 89
Accumulated depreciation (345,672) (292,360)

$ 303,833 $ 350,829
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Quar ter  Ended  December  29,  2001
The Company’s reorganization plan for the fourth quarter of 2001 focused primarily in Europe, and to a limited extent, in the U.S and Other
International. This reorganization plan included facility consolidations, primarily in Europe and workforce reductions in the U.S., Europe
and Other International.

In connection with this reorganization effort, the Company recorded a charge of $10,610 ($1,217, $8,412, and $981 in the U.S., Europe, and
Other International, respectively) for the quarter ended December 29, 2001. Reorganization costs included $4,316 in employee termination
benefits for approximately 300 employees ($1,082 for approximately 110 employees in the U.S., $2,505 for approximately 120 employees in
Europe, and $729 for approximately 70 employees in Other International); $5,224 for closing, downsizing and consolidating facilities ($49,
$4,941 and $234 in the U.S., Europe and Other International, respectively); and $1,070 of other costs associated with the reorganization
($87, $966, and $17 in the U.S., Europe and Other International, respectively). The Company anticipates that these initiatives will be 
substantially completed within twelve months from December 29, 2001.

At December 29, 2001, the outstanding liability in connection with these reorganization efforts was approximately $5,368. The 
reorganization charges and related activities for the period ended December 29, 2001 are summarized as follows:

Amounts Paid Remaining

Reorganization and Charged Liability at

Costs Against the Liability Adjustments December 29, 2001

Employee termination benefits $ 4,316 $ 1,825 $ - $ 2,49 1
Facility costs 5,224 3,1 1 3 - 2 ,1 1 1
Other costs 1,070 304 - 766

Total $ 10,610 $ 5,242 $ - $ 5,368

Spec ia l  I tems
The special items of $22,893 were comprised of the following charges: $10,227 for the write-off of electronic storefront technologies that
were replaced by the Company with a more efficient solution, and inventory management software, which was no longer required because
of the Company’s business process and systems improvements; an impairment charge of $3,500 to reduce the Company’s minority equity
investment in an internet-related company to estimated net realizable value; and $9,166 to fully reserve for the Company’s outstanding
insurance claims with an independent and unrelated former credit insurer, which went into liquidation on October 3, 2001. As of December
29, 2001, approximately $7,597 of insurance claims were written-off against the reserve. The remaining claims are expected to be written-
off against the balance of the reserve in 2002.

Note  4  -  Acqu is i t ions
In January 1999, the Company purchased 44,114,340 shares of the common stock of Ingram Micro Asia Ltd. (formerly known as Electronic
Resources Ltd., “ERL”) from certain shareholders, which increased the Company’s ownership to 39.6% from the 21% ownership held in
1998. In accordance with Singapore law, the Company was required to extend a tender offer for the remaining shares and warrants of ERL as
a result of its increased ownership. The Company offered to purchase the remaining outstanding shares and warrants for approximately
$1.20 and $0.65 per share and warrant, respectively, during the tender offer period from January 4, 1999 to February 19, 1999. In addition,
during January and February 1999, the Company made open market purchases of ERL shares and warrants. As a result of the open 
market purchases and the tender offer, the Company’s ownership in ERL increased to approximately 95%. In the third quarter of 1999, the
Company commenced a take-over offer for the remaining ERL shares and warrants it did not already own. As a result of the takeover, the
Company purchased an additional 12,151,748 shares and 1,337,962 warrants of ERL, increasing the Company’s ownership position to 100%
of the outstanding shares of ERL and approximately 99% of the outstanding warrants. The aggregate purchase price paid during 1999 for
these ERL shares and warrants, net of cash acquired, was approximately $237,396.

Prior to 1999, the Company accounted for its investment in ERL, which totaled approximately $71,212, under the equity method. Due to the
purchase of ERL common stock and warrants in 1999, the Company has consolidated the results of ERL. The Company accounted for the
acquisition of ERL under the purchase method; accordingly, the results of ERL’s operations have been combined with those of the
Company commencing with the year ended January 1, 2000. The purchase price was allocated to the assets acquired and liabilities
assumed based on their estimated fair values at the date of acquisition. The excess of the purchase price, including the $71,212 paid in
December 1997, over the net assets acquired was approximately $240,506 and is being amortized on a straight-line basis over 30 years.
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on November 15, 2001 and ending on the termination date of the swap agreement. At December 29, 2001, the marked-to-market value of
the interest rate swap amounted to $6,070, which is recorded in other assets with an offsetting adjustment to the hedged debt, bringing
the total carrying value of the Senior Subordinated Notes to $204,899.

Annual maturities of the Company’s long-term debt as of December 29, 2001 are as follows: $252,803 in 2002, $405 in 2003, and $204,899 in 2008.

Note  8  -  Income Taxes
The components of income (loss) before taxes and extraordinary item consist of the following:

Fiscal Year 2001 2000 1999

United States $ 1 7,1 63 $ 332,24 1 $ 275,013
Foreign (1,228) 30,268 15,480
Total $ 15,935 $ 362,509 $ 290,493

The provision for (benefit from) income taxes consists of the following:

Fiscal Year 2001 2000 1999

Current:
Federal $ (15,1 65) $ 55,038 $ 62,832
State (6,656) 4,626 8
Foreign 20,856 28,335 25,488

(965) 87,999 88,328
Deferred:

Federal 2 1,1 50 58,418 32,801
State 7,827 6,537 7,847
Foreign (21,424) (14,1 98) (18,1 24)

7,553 50,757 22,524
Provision for income taxes $ 6,588 $ 138,756 $ 1 10,852

Deferred income taxes reflect the tax effect of temporary differences between the carrying amount of assets and liabilities for financial reporting 
purposes and the amounts used for income tax purposes. Significant components of the Company’s net deferred tax assets and liabilities are as follows:

Fiscal Year End 2001 2000

Net deferred tax assets and (liabilities):
Net operating loss carryforwards $ 7 1,1 97 $ 50,983
Allowance on accounts receivable 10,1 59 18,093
Inventories (2,537) 6,246
Tax credit carryforwards 26,839 26,30 1
Realized gain on available-for-sale securities not currently taxable (1 18,229) (1 18,229)
Depreciation and amortization (50,1 1 1) (33,625)
Other (8,969) (7,350)

(71,65 1) (57,58 1)
Unrealized gain on available-for-sale securities 428 (10,801)

Total $ (71,223) $ (68,382)

Net current deferred tax assets of $9,707 and  $26,297 were included in other current assets at December 29, 2001 and December 30, 2000, 
respectively. Net non-current deferred tax liabilities of $80,930 and $94,679 were included in other liabilities at December 29, 2001 and December
30, 2000, respectively.

The Company has recorded deferred tax liabilities totaling $118,229 in 2001 and 2000 associated with realized gains on available-for-sale securities
relating to its sales of Softbank common stock (see Note 2). The Softbank common stock was sold in the public market by one of the Company’s
foreign subsidiaries, which is located in a low-tax jurisdiction. At the time of the sale, the Company concluded that U.S. taxes were not currently
payable on the gains based on its internal assessment and opinions received from the Company’s advisors. However, in situations involving 
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Note  7  -  Long-Term Debt
The Company’s long-term debt was comprised of the following:

Fiscal Year End 2001 2000

Revolving credit facilities and other long-term debt $ 252,803 $ 325,583
Convertible debentures 405 220,035
Senior subordinated notes 204,899 -

458,1 07 545,618
Current maturities of long-term debt (252,803) (42,774)

$ 205,304 $ 502,844

The Company has a revolving senior credit facility with a bank syndicate providing an aggregate credit availability of $500,000. Under
this senior credit facility, the Company is required to comply with certain financial covenants, including minimum tangible net worth,
restrictions on funded debt and interest coverage. This senior credit facility also restricts the amount of dividends the Company can
pay as well as the amount of common stock that it can repurchase annually. This senior credit facility expires in October 2002. At
December 29, 2001 and December 30, 2000, the Company had $2,000 and $1,984, respectively, in outstanding borrowings under this
credit facility. At December 30, 2000, the Company also had $73,500 outstanding under credit facilities that have since expired.

The Company also has additional lines of credit, commercial paper, short-term overdraft facilities, and other credit facilities with various
financial institutions worldwide which provide for borrowing capacity aggregating $584,626 and $751,640 at December 29, 2001 and
December 30, 2000, respectively. Most of these arrangements are on an uncommitted basis and are reviewed periodically for renewal. At
December 29, 2001 and December 30, 2000, the Company had $250,803 and $250,099, respectively, outstanding under these facilities. The
weighted average interest rate on the outstanding borrowings under these credit facilities was 5.20% and 6.67% per annum at December
29, 2001 and December 30, 2000, respectively.

On June 9, 1998, the Company sold $1,330,000 aggregate principal amount at maturity of its Zero Coupon Convertible Senior Debentures
due 2018 in a private placement. Gross proceeds from the offering were $460,400, which represented a yield to maturity of 5.375% per
annum. In 2000, the Company repurchased convertible debentures with carrying values of $235,219 for $231,330 in cash, resulting in an
extraordinary gain of $2,420, net of taxes of $1,469. In 2001, the Company repurchased more than 99% of the remaining outstanding 
convertible debentures with a total carrying value of $220,733 for $224,977 in cash, resulting in an extraordinary loss of $2,610, net of tax
benefits of $1,634 million. At December 29, 2001 and December 30, 2000, the Company’s remaining convertible debentures had an 
outstanding balance of $405 and $220,035, respectively, and were convertible into approximately 5,000 shares and 3,100,000 shares,
respectively, of its Class A Common Stock.

On August 16, 2001, the Company sold $200,000 of 9.875% Senior Subordinated Notes due 2008 to qualified institutional buyers pursuant
to Rule 144A and Regulation S under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, at an issue price of 99.382%, resulting in cash proceeds of
approximately $195,084 (net of issuance costs of approximately $3,680). The Company subsequently registered the exchange of these
Senior Subordinated Notes under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended. Under the terms of these notes, the Company is required to 
comply with certain restrictive covenants, including restrictions on the incurrence of additional indebtedness, the amount of dividends
the Company can pay and the amount of capital stock the Company can repurchase.

Interest on the notes is payable semi-annually in arrears on February 15 and August 15, commencing on February 15, 2002. The Company
may redeem any of the notes beginning on August 15, 2005 with an initial redemption price of 104.938% of their principal amount
plus accrued interest. The redemption price of the notes will be 102.469% plus accrued interest beginning on August 15, 2006 and will be
100% of their principal amount plus accrued interest beginning on August 15, 2007. In addition, on or before August 15, 2004, the Company
may redeem up to 35% of the notes at a redemption price of 109.875% of their principal amount plus accrued interest using the proceeds
from sales of certain kinds of capital stock. The Company may make such redemption only if at least 65% of the aggregate principal
amount of notes originally issued remain outstanding.

On August 16, 2001, the Company also entered into interest rate swap agreements with two financial institutions, the effect of which was
to swap the Company’s fixed rate obligation on the Company’s Senior Subordinated Notes for a floating rate obligation based on 90-day
LIBOR plus 4.260%. All other financial terms of the interest rate swap agreement are identical to those of the Senior Subordinated Notes,
except for the quarterly payment of interest, which will be on November 15, February 15, May 15 and August 15 in each year, commencing
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Note  1 1  -  Segment  Informat ion
The Company operates predominantly in a single industry segment as a distributor of information technology products and services.
The Company’s operating segments are based on geographic location, and the measure of segment profit is income from operations.
The accounting policies of the segments are the same as those described in the summary of significant accounting policies. Geographic
areas in which the Company operates include the United States, Europe (Austria, Belgium, Denmark, Finland, France, Germany, Hungary,
Italy, The Netherlands, Norway, Poland, Portugal, Spain, Sweden, Switzerland, and the United Kingdom) and Other international (Australia,
The People’s Republic of China [including Hong Kong], India, Malaysia, New Zealand, Singapore, Thailand, Canada, Argentina, Brazil, Chile,
Mexico, and Peru). Inter-geographic sales primarily represent intercompany sales which are accounted for based on established sales
prices between the related companies and are eliminated in consolidation.

Financial information by geographic segments is as follows:

As of and for the Fiscal Year Ended 2001 2000 1999

Net sales
United States

Sales to unaffiliated customers $ 13,507,066 $ 18,452,069 $ 16,813,4 1 4
Intergeographic sales 169,452 1 92,339 183,208

Europe 7,156,840 7,472,266 7,344,1 4 2
Other international 4,523,027 4,790,814 3,91 1 ,086
Eliminations of intergeographic sales (169,452) (192,339) (183,208)

Total $ 25,1 86,933 $ 30,7 1 5,149 $ 28,068,642

Income (loss) from operations
United States $ 84,859 $ 279,457 $ 143,496
Europe 13,642 51,1 04 19,1 1 8
Other international (5,57 1) 22,876 37,390

Total $ 92,930 $ 353,437 $ 200,004

Identifiable assets
United States $ 3,1 1 4,9 0 1 $ 4,083,399 $ 5,827,382
Europe 1,264,1 64 1,5 1 4,1 09 1,644,354
Other international 922,942 1,0 1 1 ,474 800,1 9 1

Total $ 5,302,007 $ 6,608,982 $ 8,271,927

Capital expenditures
United States $ 59,85 1 $ 97,965 $ 93,059
Europe 14,598 34,839 27,192
Other international 1 1 ,989 13,300 15,009

Total $ 86,438 $ 146,1 04 $ 135,260

Depreciation
United States $ 67,1 29 $ 60,608 $ 49,1 74
Europe 17,257 16,610 17,522
Other international 9,63 1 9,253 8,005

Total $ 94,0 1 7 $ 86,47 1 $ 74,70 1

Amortization
United States $ 5,754 $ 5,557 $ 5,645
Europe 3,300 5,467 6,1 46
Other international 1 1 ,909 1 1,015 1 1,1 09

Total $ 20,963 $ 22,039 $ 22,900
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uncertainties in the interpretation of complex tax regulations by various taxing authorities, the Company provides for deferred tax liabilities unless the
Company considers it probable that taxes will not be due. The level of opinions received from the Company’s advisors and its internal assessment
did not allow it to reach that conclusion on this matter. Although the Company reviews its assessments in these matters on a regular basis, the
Company cannot currently determine when this matter will be finally resolved with the taxing authorities or if taxes will be ultimately paid.

The Company’s federal income tax returns through fiscal year 1996 have been audited and closed. The U.S. IRS has initiated its audit of the
Company’s federal income tax returns for fiscal years 1997 through 1999.

Reconciliation of income taxes at the statutory U.S. federal income tax rate to the Company’s provision for income taxes is as follows:

2001 2000 1999

U.S. statutory rate $ 5,577 $ 1 26,878 $ 101 ,673
State income taxes, net of federal income tax benefit 1 ,1 7 1 1 1 ,1 63 7,855
Foreign rates less than statutory rate (4,537) (2,968) (3,1 64)
Goodwill 4,352 4,73 1 4,572
Other 25 (1,048) (84)
Provision for income taxes $ 6,588 $ 1 38,756 $ 1 10,852

At December 29, 2001, the Company had foreign net operating tax loss carryforwards of approximately $245,509 of which approximately
$203,101 had no expiration date. The remaining foreign net operating tax loss carryforwards expire through the year 2011.

The Company does not provide for income taxes on undistributed earnings of foreign subsidiaries as such earnings are intended to be
permanently reinvested in those operations.

Note  9  -  Transact ions  w ith  Re lated  Par t ies
The Company has loans receivable from certain of its executives and associates. These loans, ranging up to $500, have interest rates ranging
from 0.0% to 6.75% per annum and are payable from 15 days to five years. At December 29, 2001 and December 30, 2000, the Company’s
loan receivable balance was $1,598 and $1,811, respectively.

Note  10  -  Commitments  and  Cont ingenc ies
There are various claims, lawsuits and pending actions against the Company incident to the Company’s operations. It is the opinion of
management that the ultimate resolution of these matters will not have a material adverse effect on the Company’s consolidated financial
position or results of operations.

As is customary in the IT distribution industry, the Company has arrangements with certain finance companies that provide inventory
financing facilities for its customers. In conjunction with certain of these arrangements, the Company has agreements with the finance
companies that would require it to repurchase certain inventory, which might be repossessed, from the customers by the finance companies.
Due to various reasons, including among other items, the lack of information regarding the amount of saleable inventory purchased from
the Company still on hand with the customer at any point in time, the Company’s repurchase obligations relating to inventory cannot be
reasonably estimated. Repurchases of inventory by the Company under these arrangements have been insignificant to date.

The Company leases the majority of its facilities and certain equipment under noncancelable operating leases. Renewal and purchase
options at fair values exist for a substantial portion of the leases. Rental expense for the years ended 2001, 2000, and 1999 was $105,299,
$102,334, and $82,781, respectively.

Future minimum rental commitments on operating leases that have remaining noncancelable lease terms in excess of one year as of
December 29, 2001 were as follows:

2002 $ 76,074
2003 63,879
2004 59,903
2005 54,736
2006 47,823
Thereafter 231,233

$ 533,648
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In August 2001, the human resources committee of the Company’s board of directors authorized a modification of the exercise schedule
to retirees under the Equity Incentive Plans. The modification extended the exercise period upon retirement (as defined in the Equity
Incentive Plans) from 12 months to 60 months for outstanding options as of August 1, 2001 and for all options granted thereafter, but
not to exceed the contractual life of the option. Compensation expense, if any, will be recorded upon the retirement of eligible
employees and is calculated based on the excess of the fair value of the Company’s stock on the modification date ($14.28 per share) over
the exercise price of the modified option multiplied by the number of vested but unexercised options outstanding upon retirement. For
2001, a noncash compensation charge of $69 was recorded in the consolidated statement of income relating to this modification.

A summary of activity under the Company’s stock option plans is presented below:

Weighted Average

Shares (000s) Exercise Price

Outstanding at January 2, 1999 1 5 , 1 8 1 $ 14.85
Stock options granted during the year 7,833 18.45
Stock options exercised (1,674) 4.42
Forfeitures (2,297) 24.06

Outstanding at January 1, 2000 19,043 16.90
Stock options granted during the year 10,016 13.52
Stock options exercised (1,62 1) 6.4 1
Forfeitures (3,03 1) 19.01

Outstanding at December 30, 2000 24,407 15.93
Stock options granted during the year 7,412 15.2 1
Stock options exercised (2,630) 7.57
Forfeitures (2,887) 20.1 5
Outstanding at December 29, 2001 26,302 16.1 5

The following table summarizes information about stock options outstanding and exercisable at December 29, 2001.

Options Outstanding                                                               Options Exercisable

Number Weighted- Weighted- Number Weighted-

Outstanding Average Average Exercisable at Average

Range of Exercise Prices at 12/29/01 (000s) Remaining Life Exercise Price 12/29/01 (000s) Exercise Price

$ 0.68 - $ 3.32 957 0.7 $ 2.1 1 957 $ 2.1 1
$ 7.00 836 2.3 7.00 836 7.00
$ 10.63 - $ 17.44 17,502 8.6 14.04 5,142 13.15
$ 18.00 - $ 27.00 4,463 3.8 19.61 4,1 33 19.33
$ 27.06 - $ 38.63 2,080 4.5 29.68 1,184 29.63
$ 41.69 - $ 53.56 464 4.9 47.28 315 47.20

26,302 16.15 12,567 16.34

Stock options exercisable totaled approximately 12,567,000; 10,933,000; and 7,260,000 at December 29, 2001, December 30, 2000, and
January 1, 2000, respectively, at weighted average exercise prices of $16.34, $15.38, and $13.42, respectively.
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Note  12  -  Stock  Opt ions  and  Incent ive  P lans
The Company adopted the disclosure requirements of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 123 (“FAS 123”) in 1996. As permitted
by FAS 123, the Company continues to measure compensation cost in accordance with APB 25 and related interpretations. Therefore, the
adoption of FAS 123 had no impact on the Company’s consolidated financial condition or results of operations. Had compensation cost for
the Company’s stock option plans been determined based on the fair value of the options consistent with the fair value method under
FAS 123, the Company’s net income and earnings per share would have been reduced to the pro forma amounts indicated below:

Fiscal Year 2001 2000 1999

Net Income (Loss) As reported $ 6,737 $ 226,173 $ 183,419
Pro forma $ (19,9 14) $ 183,1 17 $ 152,789

Diluted earnings per share As reported $ 0.04 $ 1.52 $ 1.24
Pro forma $ (0.1 3) $ 1.23 $ 1.03

The weighted average fair value per option granted in 2001, 2000, and 1999 was $6.66, $5.00, and $7.66, respectively. The fair value of options
was estimated using the Black-Scholes option-pricing model assuming no dividends and using the following weighted average assumptions:

Fiscal Year 2001 2000 1999

Risk-free interest rate 3.67% 6.30% 5.45%
Expected years until exercise 2.5 years 2.2 years 2.7 years
Expected stock volatility 68.3% 59.2% 55.5%

Rol lover  Stock  Opt ion  P lan
Certain of the Company’s employees participated in the qualified and non-qualified stock option and stock appreciation right (“SAR”)
plans of the Company’s former parent, Ingram Industries Inc. (“Industries”). In conjunction with the Company’s split-off from Industries,
Industries options and SARs held by the Company’s employees and certain other Industries options, SARs and Incentive Stock Units
(“ISUs”) were converted to or exchanged for Ingram Micro options (“Rollover Stock Options”). Approximately 11.0 million Rollover Stock
Options were outstanding immediately following the conversion. All Rollover Stock Options were fully vested by the year 2001 and no such
options expire later than 10 years from the date of grant.

Equity  Incent ive  P lans
In 2001, the Company had three existing equity incentive plans, the 1996, 1998, and 2000 Equity Incentive Plans (collectively called “the
Equity Incentive Plans”) which provide for the grant of stock based awards including incentive stock options, non-qualified stock options,
restricted stock, and stock appreciation rights, among others, to key employees and members of the Company’s board of directors. Under
the three plans, the Company’s board of directors authorized 47.0 million shares to be made available for grants. As of December 29, 2001,
approximately 15.6 million shares were available for grants. Options granted under the Equity Incentive Plans were issued at exercise
prices ranging from $7.00 to $53.56 per share and have expiration dates not longer than 10 years from the date of grant. The options
granted generally vest over a period of one to five-years. In October 1999, the Company granted a total of 272,250 shares of restricted
Class A Common Stock to certain executives under the 1998 Plan. These shares have no purchase price and vested ratably over a two-year
period. The Company recorded unearned compensation of $3,458 as a component of stockholders’ equity. The unearned compensation
was amortized and charged to operations over the vesting period. In 2001 and 2000, 1,500 and 38,000 shares, respectively, of the restricted
Class A Common Stock were forfeited.  In July 2001, the Company also granted a total of 55,973 shares of restricted Class A Common Stock
to a board member and an executive under the 2000 Plan. These shares have no purchase price and vest ratably over a period of two to
three years. The Company recorded unearned compensation of $790 as a component of stockholders’ equity. The unearned 
compensation is being amortized and charged to operations over the vesting period.
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The detail of changes in the number of issued and outstanding shares of Class A Common Stock, Class B Common Stock, and Redeemable
Class B Common Stock for the three year period ended December 29, 2001, is as follows:

Common Stock

Class B

Class A Class B Redeemable

January 2, 1999 66,520,7 1 5 74,343,460 1,1 16,250
Stock options exercised 1,673,62 1 - -
Repurchase of Redeemable Class B Common Stock - - (15,270 )
Conversion of Class B Common Stock

to Class A Common Stock 2,163,569 (2,1 63,569) -
Vesting of Redeemable

Class B Common Stock - 558,1 25 (558,1 25 )
Issuance of Class A Common Stock related

to Employee Stock Purchase Plan 582,362 - -
Grant of restricted Class A Common Stock 272,250 - -

January 1, 2000 71,212,5 1 7 72,738,016 542,855
Stock options exercised 1,620,890 - -
Repurchase of Redeemable Class B Common Stock - - (12,657 )
Conversion of Class B Common Stock

to Class A Common Stock 2,858,408 (2,858,408) -
Vesting of Redeemable Class B Common Stock - 530,1 98 (530,1 98 )
Issuance of Class A Common Stock related

to Employee Stock Purchase Plan 144,300 - -
Forfeiture of restricted Class A

Common Stock (38,000) - -

December 30, 2000 75,798,1 1 5 70,409,806 -
Stock options exercised 2,629,7 1 4 - -
Repurchase of Class B Common Stock - (5,550) -
Conversion of Class B Common Stock

to Class A Common Stock 70,404,256 (70,404,256) -
Issuance of Class A Common Stock related

to Employee Stock Purchase Plan 1 38,235 - -
Grant of restricted Class A Common Stock 55,973 - -
Forfeiture of restricted Class A Common Stock (1,500) - -

December 29, 2001 149,024,793 - -
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Key  Employee  Stock  Purchase  P lan
As of April 30, 1996, the Company adopted the Key Employee Stock Purchase Plan (the “Stock Purchase Plan”) which provides for
the issuance of up to 4,000,000 shares of Class B Common Stock to certain employees. In June 1996, the Company offered 2,775,000
shares of its Class B Common Stock for sale to certain employees pursuant to the Stock Purchase Plan, and subsequently sold
2,510,400 shares at $7.00 per share with aggregate proceeds of approximately $17,573. The shares sold thereby were subject to 
certain restrictions on transfer and to repurchase by the Company at the original offering price upon termination of employment
prior to certain specified vesting dates. The Company has repurchased 248,170 of such shares. All remaining shares are fully vested.

Employee  Stock  Purchase  P lans
In 1998, the board of directors and the Company’s shareholders approved the 1998 Employee Stock Purchase Plan (the “Plan”)
under which 3,000,000 shares of the Company’s Class A Common Stock could be sold to employees. Under the Plan, employees can
elect to have between 1% and 6% of their earnings withheld to be applied to the purchase of these shares. The purchase price
under the Plan is generally the lesser of the market price on the beginning or ending date of the offering periods. Under the 1998
Plan, offerings were made both in January and July of 2001 and 2000. The 2001 and 2000 offerings ended on December 31, 2001
and 2000, respectively. In January 2002 and 2001, the Company issued approximately 109,000 and 138,000, respectively, of the
authorized shares and converted approximately $1,300 and $1,600, respectively, in accrued employee contributions into stock-
holders’ equity as a result.

Employee  Benef i t  P lans
The Company’s employee benefit plans permit eligible employees to make contributions up to certain limits, which are matched
by the Company at stipulated percentages. The Company’s contributions charged to expense were $5,031 in 2001, $4,530 in 2000,
and $4,484 in 1999.

Note  13  -  Common Stock
Prior to November 6, 2001, the Company had two classes of Common Stock, consisting of 500,000,000 authorized shares of $0.01
par value Class A Common Stock and 135,000,000 authorized shares of $0.01 par value Class B Common Stock, and 25,000,000
authorized shares of $0.01 par value Preferred Stock. Class A stockholders are entitled to one vote on each matter to be voted on
by the stockholders whereas Class B stockholders were entitled to ten votes on each matter to be voted on by the stockholders.
The two classes of stock have the same rights in all other respects. On November 6, 2001, all outstanding shares of the Company’s
Class B Common Stock were automatically converted into shares of Class A Common Stock on a one-for-one basis in accordance
with the terms of the Company’s certificate of incorporation.
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Management’s Statement of Financial Responsibility

Management is responsible for the integrity of the financial information contained in this annual report, including the Company’s 
consolidated financial statements, which have been prepared in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles and include
amounts based upon management’s informed estimates and judgments.

Management believes it maintains an effective system of internal accounting controls, including an internal audit program, that is designed
to provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance that assets are safeguarded and that accounting records provide a reliable basis for the
preparation of financial statements. This system is continuously reviewed, improved and modified in response to changing business 
conditions and operations and recommendations made by the independent accountants and internal auditors. Management believes that
the accounting and control systems provide reasonable assurance that assets are safeguarded and financial information is reliable.

The Company’s Bylaws provide that a majority of the members of the audit committee of the board of directors shall be independent
directors who are not employees of the Company. The audit committee is currently comprised entirely of independent directors. The audit
committee represents the board of directors on matters relating to corporate accounting, financial reporting, internal accounting control
and auditing, including the ongoing assessment of the activities of the independent accountants and internal auditors. The independent
accountants and internal auditors advise the audit committee of significant findings and recommendations arising from their activities
and have free access to the audit committee, with or without the presence of management.

Kent B. Foster Michael J. Grainger Thomas A. Madden
Chairman of the Board and President and Executive Vice President and
Chief Executive Officer Chief Operating Officer Chief Financial Officer

Report of Independent Accountants
To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of Ingram Micro Inc.

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated balance sheet and the related consolidated statements of income, of stockholders’ equity
and of cash flows present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Ingram Micro Inc. and its subsidiaries at December 29,
2001 and December 30, 2000, and the results of their operations and their cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended
December 29, 2001 in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. These financial 
statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management; our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements
based on our audits. We conducted our audits of these statements in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America, which require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial 
statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and 
disclosures in the financial statements, assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, and
evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Los Angeles, California
February 14, 2002
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Gregory M. E. Spierkel
Executive Vice President and President

Ingram Micro Europe

Asger Falstrup
Senior Vice President and President

Ingram Micro Latin America

CORPORATE OFFICES

Ingram Micro Inc.
1600 E. St. Andrew Place

Santa Ana, CA 92705

Phone: 714.566.1000

ANNUAL MEETING
The 2002 Annual Meeting of Shareowners will

be held at 10 a.m. (Pacific Daylight Time),

Thursday, May 30, 2002, at Ingram Micro Inc., 

1600 E. St. Andrew Place, Santa Ana, CA 92705.

Shareowners are cordially invited to attend.

TRANSFER AGENT AND REGISTRAR
First Chicago Trust Company of New York 

A Division of EquiServe

Post Office Box 2500

Jersey City, NJ 07303-2500

Phone: 201.324.1644

INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANTS
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

350 South Grand Avenue, 49th Floor

Los Angeles, CA 90071

Phone: 213.356.6000

COMMON STOCK
The Class A Common Stock of Ingram Micro

is traded on the New York Stock Exchange

under the symbol IM.

Price Range of Class A Common Stock

Fiscal 2001 High Low

First Quarter $ 16.85 $ 10.69

Second Quarter 15.40 12.4 1

Third Quarter 15.45 12.00

Fourth Quarter 1 7. 40 12.08

Fiscal 2000 High Low

First Quarter $ 16.00 $ 10.50

Second Quarter 21 .1 3 13.00

Third Quarter 20.75 13. 1 3

Fourth Quarter 18.38 10.19

SHAREOWNER INQUIRIES
Requests for information may be sent to

the Investor Relations Department at our

Corporate offices. 

Investor Relations telephone information

line: 714.382.8282.

Investor Relations e-mail address:

investor.relations@ingrammicro.com.

Additional information also is available 

on our Web site: www.ingrammicro.com/corp.
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CORPORATE MANAGEMENT

Kent B. Foster
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Michael J. Grainger
President and Chief Operating Officer

Guy P. Abramo
Executive Vice President and 

Chief Strategy and Information Officer

Thomas A. Madden
Executive Vice President

and Chief Financial Officer

James E. Anderson, Jr.
Senior Vice President, Secretary 

and General Counsel

David M. Finley
Senior Vice President, Human Resources

James F. Ricketts
Corporate Vice President and Treasurer

REGIONAL MANAGEMENT

Hans T. Koppen
Executive Vice President and President

Ingram Micro Asia-Pacific

Kevin M. Murai
Executive Vice President and President

Ingram Micro North America
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